
1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
FULL BOARD MEETING 

May 11, 2023 
7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1  
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA  

OAKLAND, CA 94612 
 

AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
The public may observe or participate in this meeting in many ways.  
 
OBSERVE: 
• To observe, the public may view the televised video conference by viewing KTOP 
channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or ATT Channel 99 and locating City of Oakland 
KTOP – Channel 10 
• To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on the link below: 
When: May 11, 2023 07:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89720634438  
Or One tap mobile : 
    +16694449171,,89720634438# US 
    +16699009128,,89720634438# US (San Jose) 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
    +1 669 444 9171 US, +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose), +1 346 248 7799 US 
(Houston), +1 719 359 4580 US, +1 253 205 0468 US, +1 253 215 8782 US 
(Tacoma), +1 386 347 5053 US, +1 507 473 4847 US, +1 564 217 2000 US, +1 
646 558 8656 US (New York), +1 646 931 3860 US, +1 689 278 1000 US, +1 301 
715 8592 US (Washington DC), +1 305 224 1968 US, +1 309 205 3325 US,  +1 
312 626 6799 US (Chicago). +1 360 209 5623 US 
Webinar ID: 897 2063 4438 
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcxKe52I7  
The Zoom link is to view/listen to the meeting only, not for participation.   
  
PARTICIPATION/COMMENT: 
There is one way to submit public comments: 
• To participate/comment during the meeting, you must attend in-person. 
Comments on all agenda items will be taken during public comment at the 
beginning of the meeting. Comments for items not on the agenda will be taken 
during open forum towards the end of the meeting.  
 
 
If you have any questions, please email hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov. 
 

000001

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89720634438
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcxKe52I7
mailto:hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov


2  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD MEETING 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

a. Comments on all agenda items will be taken at this time. Comments 
for items not on the agenda will be taken during open forum. 

4. CONSENT ITEMS 

a. Approval of Board Minutes, 4/13/2023 (pp. 3-9) 

b. Approval of Board Panel Minutes, 4/20/2023 (pp. 10-18)  

5. APPEALS* 

a. T19-0186/T19-0235, Didrickson v. Dang (pp.19-120) 

b. T22-0202, Joseph v. Jones (pp. 121-209) 

6. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

7. OPEN FORUM 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

*Staff appeal summaries will be available at the Rent Program website and the Clerk’s office at least 72 

hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.080.C and 2.20.090 
 

As a reminder, alternates in attendance (other than those replacing an absent board member) will 
not be able to take any action, such as with regard to the consent calendar. 

 
Accessibility:  Contact us to request disability-related accommodations, American Sign 
Language (ASL), Spanish, Cantonese, Mandarin, or another language interpreter at least 
five (5) business days before the event. Rent Adjustment Program (RAP) staff can be 
contacted via email at RAP@oaklandca.gov or via phone at (510) 238-3721. California 
relay service at 711 can also be used for disability-related accommodations.  
  
Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un 
intérprete de en Español, Cantones, Mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) por favor 
envié un correo electrónico a RAP@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-3721 o 711 por lo 
menos cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión.   
  

需要殘障輔助設施, 手語, 西班牙語, 粵語或國語翻譯服務, 請在會議前五個工作天電

郵  RAP@oaklandca.gov 或致電 (510) 238-3721 或711 California relay service.  

 

000002

mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov
mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov
mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov


 
1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
FULL BOARD MEETING 

April 13, 2023 
7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL 
1 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, HEARING ROOM #1 

 OAKLAND, CA 94612 

MINUTES  

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Board meeting was administered in-person by B. Lawrence-McGowan from 
the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP), Housing and Community Development 
Department. B. Lawrence-McGowan explained the procedure for conducting the 
meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order by Chair Ingram at 7:05 p.m. 
 

 2.  ROLL CALL 
 

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 

R. NICKENS, JR.  Tenant  X*   

D. WILLIAMS Tenant X   

J. DEBOER Tenant Alt.   X 

M. GOOLSBY Tenant Alt.   X 
D. INGRAM Undesignated X            

C. OSHINUGA  Undesignated X            

E. TORRES Undesignated   X  

M. ESCOBAR Undesignated 
Alt. 

  X 

Vacant Undesignated 
Alt. 

   

 D. TAYLOR   Landlord X            

 Vacant   Landlord    
 Vacant Landlord Alt.        
 K. SIMS Landlord Alt.        X 

 *Member Nickens left the meeting at 7:40 pm 

 

Staff Present 

 Kent Qian    Deputy City Attorney 
 Marguerita Fa-Kaji   Senior Hearing Officer (RAP) 
 Briana Lawrence-McGowan Administrative Analyst II (RAP) 
  
 

000003



 
2  

 3.  WELCOME NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

a. Newly appointed Board members, DéSeana Williams and Demitri Taylor 
were introduced and welcomed by staff and fellow Board members. 

 

 4.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

a. No members of the public spoke during public comment. 

 

 5.  CONSENT ITEMS 

a. Approval of Board Minutes, 3/23/2023: Member D. Williams moved to 
approve the Board Minutes from 3/23/2023. Vice Chair Oshinuga seconded 
the motion. 
 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:  D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, D. Taylor, R. Nickens, D. Williams 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 

The minutes were approved. 

5. APPEALS* 

a. T22-0124, Benafield v. Equity Avg. LLC 
 
Appearances:  Andrew Zacks Owner Representative 
    Kevin Benafield Tenant 

 
This case involved an owner appeal related to a decreased housing services 
claim decision. The Hearing Officer granted some decreased housing services 
claims. The Hearing Officer also found that the owner illegally passed through 
garbage charges to tenant, in violation of the Oakland regulation rule on splitting 
utilities. The owner appealed the decision, arguing that 1.) waste management 
bills were charged separately for each unit and attached new evidence with 
quarterly bills for each unit; and 2.) because the waste management bills were 
addressed the owner, the Hearing Officer assumed that the owners were dividing 
the bill, while in fact waste management was individually billing by each unit. The 
following issue was presented to the Board: 
 
1.) Does substantial evidence support the Hearing Officer’s conclusion that 
charging for garbage collection by the owner violated the rent regulations 
prohibition on splitting utilities? 

000004



 
3  

 
The owner representative contended that they believe there was an error made 
because the Hearing Officer determined that the property owner was not entitled 
to be reimbursed for garbage services that were provided to the tenant and had 
been provided to the tenant since the conception of the tenancy. The owner 
representative argued that prior to the current owner obtaining the property, the 
tenant had always paid for the garbage by paying the landlord. The owner 
representative contended that the prior landlord paid for the garbage, and after 
the landlord paid for the garbage services, it was then billed to the tenant. The 
owner representative argued that in this case, after the property owner 
purchased the property, there was some delay in billing the tenant for the 
garbage services, and at some point, a bill was sent, then this dispute arose over 
the garbage services. The owner representative contended that the reason they 
believe there was an error of law in this case is because the Hearing Officer 
relied on a rent board rule that provides that when you have shared utility 
services that are billed together, that you cannot pass through the costs of that 
utility to the tenant. The owner representative argued that there's no evidence for 
the Hearing Officer to find that there were shared utility services in this case, that 
each one of the units in this building receives a separate bill for garbage 
services—which is what previously occurred before the current ownership. 
 
The owner representative contended that there is no basis for concluding that 
these are shared in any way and that it is undisputed that the tenant is 
responsible under the lease for this service. The owner representative argued 
that the lease is very clear, that the landlord is entitled to collect for all utilities 
and services, and that the landlord is not responsible for any of those services. 
The owner representative contended that the Hearing Officer misapplied the 
Oakland rent board rule and did not correctly analyze the facts, which were that 
there were separate bills for each unit—not shared bills, and there is no evidence 
whatsoever in this record that would allow for the application of the shared utility 
rule to this circumstance. The owner representative contended that they’re urging 
the Board to remand the case back to the Hearing Officer for a new hearing to 
consider the facts in their entirety. The owner representative argued that the 
Hearing Officer should be ordered to reinstate the property owner’s right to 
collect for the garbage services as is provided for by the lease and allowable 
under the Oakland rent board rules and regulations.  
 
The owner representative contended there was a $70 decrease in rent awarded 
for a failure to maintain landscaping at the property because there was a 
complaint made by the tenant that the grass had died and wasn't being 
watered—however, at the time, California had been suffering drought conditions, 
and most property owners in Oakland and Northern California were being urged 
not to water their lawns. The owner representative argued that they believe it's an 
incorrect policy decision to force a landlord to suffer a reduction in rent, when as 
the result of drought conditions, water was not being applied to a yard. The 

000005



 
4  

owner representative contended that everyone had to share in the implications of 
being in a record drought and that the rule could have been applied differently. 
The owner representative urged the Rent Board not to require property owners to 
not be good stewards and not follow sound environmental policies.  
 
The owner representative contended that perhaps there was some delay by the 
property owner when attempting to collect the garbage fee from the tenant and 
apologized on behalf of the property owner. The owner representative argued 
that the Board should follow the law and their own ordinance and regulations, 
and that the Hearing Officer did not make any findings that the payments were 
not being allowed as the result of a delay by the property owner. The owner 
representative apologized on behalf of the owner if there was miscommunication 
around the eviction notice.  
 
The tenant contended that he and his family have lived at the property for 10 
years. The tenant argued that prior to the current owner taking ownership, the 
owners paid the garbage, and then they paid it by an invoice provided by the 
previous property manager, as they assumed that they had to pay for it. The 
tenant contended that when the new owner took ownership, the owner started 
paying the garbage and they stopped receiving invoices for their unit. The tenant 
argued that they then received an invoice to pay the garbage for three years, and 
that they were confused because they assumed that the new owners were 
paying for the garbage. The tenant argued that the property manager admitted in 
the last hearing that he didn't get around to sending the invoices because of 
COVID. The tenant contended that there weren’t just issues related to the 
garbage—the owners also stopped a lot of services, such as landscaping. The 
tenant argued that in July, the owner gave them a three-day notice to pay the 
garbage or get out after 10 years—and since they didn’t know the law, they paid 
them. The tenant contended that they have paid their rent every single month on 
time, and it seems like the owner didn't agree with what the Hearing Officer 
decided, so they tried to get a new one. The tenant argued that they had to hire 
an attorney to stop the eviction notice.  
 
The tenant contended that landscaping was previously done weekly, every single 
Friday, and that the property looked great; however, it doesn't now, and they are 
requesting for this service to be reinstated. The tenant argued that one of the 
issues that the Hearing Officer found is that they were entitled to reimbursement 
because of this. The tenant contended that the new owner bought the building, 
then discontinued a lot of services and it doesn't seem fair to the tenants. The 
tenant argued that the new owner began to pay for the garbage and the garbage 
invoices for their unit disappeared until they got the three-year bill and that they 
don't think this is fair. 
 
After parties’ arguments, questions to the parties, and Board discussion, Chair 
Ingram moved to remand the case back to the Hearing Officer on the limited 

000006



 
5  

issue of the waste management charges and for the Hearing Officer to identify 
what evidence in the record was relied on and supported their finding that the 
waste management was split. Vice Chair Oshinuga seconded the motion. Vice 
Chair Oshinuga withdrew his second and made a friendly amendment to include 
that evidence in the record includes sworn testimony from the hearing. Chair 
Ingram accepted the amendment. Vice Chair Oshinuga seconded the motion. 

 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:  D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, D. Taylor, D. Williams 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved.       

b. L22-0057, Bajaj v. Tenants 
 

  Appearances: Anita Bajaj  Owner 
 
 
This case involved an owner petition for capital improvements. The owner’s 
petition was dismissed due to owners’ non-appearance at the Zoom hearing. The 
owner appealed the decision, arguing that they should receive a new hearing 
because they never received the Zoom invitation or remote hearing notice—
despite requesting the Zoom invitation before the hearing date and on the 
hearing date. The following issue was presented to the Board: 
 
1.)  Was there a good cause provided by the owner for the owner's non-

appearance at the hearing? 
 
The owner contended that there was something wrong with the e-mail system 
around the time of the hearing. The owner argued that staff said that emails had 
been going to the wrong email inbox and argued that staff hadn’t been 
responding to their emails. The owner contended that a staff person, Marvin 
Nettles, had been helping throughout the process since she was not getting 
information from the Hearings Unit. The owner argued that a notice was sent 
stating that there would be a hearing and that a Zoom link would be provided by 
the end of November 2022; but she never got that e-mail. The owner contended 
that mid-December, she asked Marvin what the status of her hearing was, and 
Marvin said that an e-mail had been sent and that she should have received it. 
The owner contended that he attached a copy to the email, but that was the first 
time she had received any notification that there was going to be a hearing and 
that the zoom meeting link would be sent via e-mail. 

000007



 
6  

The owner argued that she immediately sent an e-mail to the Hearings Unit and 
asked for them to send the Zoom meeting link to both her and her assistant—
however, they never got the e-mail. The owner contended that on the day of the 
hearing, they looked frantically for the Zoom link and couldn't find it, so she 
reached out to Marvin and various other people at the City. The owner argued 
that staff finally sent a Zoom meeting link—but it was provided 15-17 minutes 
after the hearing start time, so the personal meeting link didn't work. The owner 
contended that she is now getting regular emails from the Hearings Unit, and 
everything is working fine now—but for about six or seven months, there were 
issues. The owner contended that this was her second appeal submission 
because after the first submission she was not getting any e-mail responses. The 
owner requested for the Board to allow the hearing to continue.  
 
After parties’ arguments, questions to the parties, and Board discussion, Chair 
Ingram moved to remand the case back to the Hearing Officer for a full hearing, 
as there was good cause for the owner not to be present at the hearing. Member 
D. Williams seconded the motion. 
 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:  D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, D. Taylor, D. Williams 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved. 

6. RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND AMENDMENTS TO THE RENT ADJUSTMENT 
REGULATIONS 

a. The Board discussed changes to the resolution to recommend 
amendments to the Rent Adjustment Regulations. Member D. Williams 
moved to postpone the agenda item to a future meeting. Vice Chair 
Oshinuga seconded the motion. 

 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:  D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, D. Taylor, D. Williams 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 
 

The motion was approved. 

 

000008



 
7  

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a. Deputy City Attorney Kent Qian informed the Board that the CED 
Committee met on Tuesday to discuss the proposed phase-out and lifting 
of the eviction moratorium. 

b. Chair Ingram announced to the Board that there is another resolution being 
proposed to City Council by the City Administrator that would extend the 
local emergency as it relates to COVID and separate the local emergency 
from the eviction moratorium. 

 
8. SCHEDULING AND REPORTS 

a. Briana Lawrence-McGowan announced that there is a Special Panel 
Meeting scheduled for Thursday, April 20, 2023, and that the Full Board 
Meeting that was scheduled for Thursday, April 27, 2023, has been 
canceled. The following Full Board Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, May 
11, 2023. 

 

9. OPEN FORUM 

a. No members of the public spoke during open forum. 

 

10. ADJOURMENT 

a. The meeting was adjourned at 9:04 p.m. 

000009



 
1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
PANEL SPECIAL MEETING 

April 20, 2023 
7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL 
1 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 OAKLAND, CA 94612 

MINUTES  

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Board meeting was administered in-person by B. Lawrence-McGowan from 
the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP), Housing and Community Development 
Department. B. Lawrence-McGowan explained the procedure for conducting the 
meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order by Chair Ingram at 7:07 p.m. 
 

 2.  ROLL CALL 
 

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 

R. NICKENS, JR.  Tenant X   

D. WILLIAMS Tenant   X 

J. DEBOER Tenant Alt.   X 

M. GOOLSBY Tenant Alt.   X 
D. INGRAM Undesignated X            

C. OSHINUGA  Undesignated            X 

Vacant Undesignated     

M. ESCOBAR Undesignated 
Alt. 

  X 

Vacant Undesignated 
Alt. 

   

 D. TAYLOR   Landlord            X 

 Vacant   Landlord    
 Vacant Landlord Alt.        
 K. SIMS Landlord Alt. X        

  

 

Staff Present 

 Braz Shabrell   Deputy City Attorney 
 Marguerita Fa-Kaji   Senior Hearing Officer (RAP) 
 Briana Lawrence-McGowan Administrative Analyst II (RAP) 
  
 

000010



 
2  

 3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

No members of the public spoke during public comment. 

 

 4.  APPEALS* 

a. L22-0050, Lu v. Tenants 
 

  No parties were present. The Board moved on to the next appeal case. 
 

b. T19-0272 & T19-0325, Jeffers v. BD Opportunity 1 LP 
 
Appearances:  Helen Grayce Long  Owner Representative 
    David Hall   Tenant Representative 

 
This case involved an owner appeal of a remand decision granting the tenant 
restitution in an amount of $35,340.00 for decrease housing services. The tenant 
petition was filed in April 2019, contesting rent increases, and alleging decreased 
housing services. After a hearing, the Hearing Officer found that no RAP notice 
had been provided to the tenant, therefore invalidating prior rent increases—and  
making a finding of decreased housing services in an amount of $25,110.00 
between October 1, 2016, and February 29, 2020. The owner filed an appeal, 
and the case came before the Board for the first time in September 2020. The 
Board remanded the case back to the Hearing Officer to recalculate the 
restitution amount so that the amount granted for May 2019 did not exceed 100% 
of the rent, to limit the restitution period to the date of the hearing, and for the 
Hearing Officer to consider prior cases from the Board regarding decreased 
housing services so that the reductions were consistent with prior cases.  
 
A remand hearing decision was issued in August 2021, and this decision lowered 
the restitution amount by $165 to account for May 2019—but was otherwise 
unchanged. There was then an appeal of the remand decision, and this came 
before the Board for a second time in February 2022. The Board again remanded 
for the Hearing Officer to limit the restitution period to the date of the hearing, and 
to again consider prior decisions of restitution for decreased housing services to 
make the decision consistent. A second remand decision was issued in January 
2023, and the decision held that there were so many violations of the health and 
safety code that the unit had no rental value, and the lawful rent was $0.00. The 
amount of restitution from October 2016 to January 13, 2020, was changed from 
$24,945 to $35,340. This is an appeal of that remand decision and there are 
numerous grounds for the appeal, including that the Hearing Officer did not follow 
Board instructions, the decision isn't supported by substantial evidence, and the 
Hearing Officer is biased. In addition, the appeal also requested that this case be 

000011



 
3  

heard by or reviewed by a different Hearing Officer. The following issues were 
presented to the Board: 
 

1.) Did the Hearing Officer exceed the scope of remand and/or fail to follow the 
Board's prior instructions, 

2.) Is the Hearing Officer’s decision supported by substantial evidence, and 
3.) When, if ever, is it appropriate for a case to be heard by a different Hearing 

Officer? 

 
The owner representative contended that in 2019 the Hearing Officer failed to 
review the entire record and was not consistent with prior decisions. The owner 
representative argued that a previous Hearing Officer did a site inspection in 
2017, saw the property, said there was nothing wrong with the property—and 
only reduced the rent because the laundry facility had been taken away. The 
owner representative contended that the owner waived rent and completed many 
repairs on the property, which was in good condition in 2016 and 2017. The 
owner representative argued that the issue related to the RAP notice is where 
the three years’ worth of restitution came from because at the time when the 
tenant filed these two petitions in 2019, no RAP notice had been given to her. 
The owner representative contended that at the initial hearing in 2019, the tenant 
only testified that she did not receive a RAP notice at the inception of her 
tenancy, and that she didn't say she didn't receive one at the time of the 
hearing—however, the Hearing Officer assumed that she hadn't and did not read 
whole record. 
 
The owner representative argued that when the case was remanded back again, 
the Hearing Officer raised the restitution amount by $11,000 and decided with no 
evidence and no site inspection that the property was worth $0 rent for three 
years. The owner representative contended that this exceeded the scope of the 
remand and that the Hearing Officer failed to follow the Board’s instructions. The 
owner representative argued that the decision was not supported by substantial 
evidence and that it is appropriate for the case to be heard by a different Hearing 
Officer. The owner representative contended that the Hearing Officer did not 
review the full record and with no justification the restitution amount was 
increased by $11,000, which is a violation of due process. 
 
The owner representative contended that they are not trying to put new evidence 
in front of the Board, and that they are arguing about what’s on the record. The 
owner representative argued that one of the reasons for an appeal is that the 
remand decision was inconsistent with the prior Hearing Officer’s decision in this 
case and that there was a site inspection in 2017. The owner representative 
argued that they are not adding new facts, that the owner has the right to have 
the record reviewed, and that the Hearing Officer had a duty to look at the record. 
The owner representative contended that the fact that three years of restitution 

000012



 
4  

was awarded is not based on substantial evidence and that no reasonable 
person who reviewed this file could make these rulings. The owner 
representative argued that the rules aren't being followed, the owner shouldn't be 
penalized by this, and that this case is completely inequitable. 
 
The tenant representative contended that this appeal is almost identical to the 
appeal heard on September 10, 2020, and the appeal heard on February 24, 
2022. The tenant representative argued that the grounds of those two appeals 
are very clear, and that the 2022 appeal was designed to do two things:  
recalculate the restitution amount for 2019, such that did not exceed 100% of the 
rent; and to consider prior decisions of the Board regarding rent reduction for 
similar housing services. The tenant representative contended that the first of 
these was done on remand, as the Hearing Officer decreased the amount so that 
it did not exceed 100% of the rent—and the Hearing Officer also limited the end 
date of restitution to the date of the hearing. The tenant representative argued 
that the only issue left was whether prior decisions of the Board regarding rent 
reductions for similar housing service reductions were met. 
 
The tenant representative argued that the appellant has not provided convincing 
argument or evidence that the rent reduction falls outside the bounds of Rent 
Board’s precedents. The tenant representative contended that in the 2020 appeal 
decision, the Board found in the respondent’s favor on the following issues that 
they could go back 36 months to calculate restitution, and that this was proper. 
The tenant representative argued that appeal hearings should be based on the 
record as presented to the Hearing Officer, unless the appeal body determines 
that an evidentiary hearing is required—and that the regulations of the Rent 
Adjustment Program say that allowing new evidence to be considered in this 
appeal would be inconsistent with prior board decisions. The tenant 
representative contended that allowing the appellant to present new evidence 
would render the initial hearing both meaningless and irrelevant. 
 
The tenant representative contended that the remand decision never said that 
the Hearing Officer had to change the decision, it just stated that the decision 
had to be justified, and this burden was met. The tenant representative argued 
that for this case, the Board should focus on the body of the record for this 
appeal, and that none of the evidence that the owner representative is citing was 
presented at the hearing and should not considered. The tenant representative 
contended that at the original hearing, the appellant didn't send an attorney, 
which was the owner's decision—and that there was evidence that was 
presented, which is being used to determine this case. The tenant representative 
argued that the tenant can't start the case all over again, unless there is some 
sort of cogent and quantified argument as to why that why these numbers are out 
of whack, what the numbers should be, or what the ballpark of these numbers 
should be. The tenant representative contended that it would not be appropriate 
to remand this case again or to do a De Novo hearing. 

000013



 
5  

After parties’ arguments, questions to the parties, and Board discussion, Member 
K. Sims moved to remand the case back to the Hearing Officer to recalculate the 
award on decreased housing services and by limiting the timeframe from January 
29, 2019, to November 7, 2019—and to provide justification for the $0 rent 
determination. Chair Ingram seconded the motion. 
 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:  D. Ingram, K. Sims 
Nay:   R. Nickens 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved.       

c. T19-0184, Beard v. Meridian Management Group 
 

  Appearances: James Beard   Tenant 
     Nancy Conway  Tenant Representative 
     Gregory McConnell  Owner Representative 
 
 
This case involved a tenant appeal of a tenant petition that was denied. The 
petition was contesting a single rent increase and alleged decrease housing 
services based on a noisy refrigerator and a garage water leak. The owner filed a 
response, alleging that the rent increase did not exceed CPI and that the 
decreased housing services claims were already addressed and decided in a 
prior hearing decision. The petition was denied in an administrative decision 
without a hearing.  
 
The tenant appealed and this case came before the Board in January 2023. The 
Board remanded the case on two issues: 1.) to determine if the issue is a new 
leak or an old leak considered in the prior case and 2.) consider the factual basis 
on the refrigerator issue as a decreased housing service. The case was 
remanded, and a hearing was held in June 2022. A remand hearing decision was 
issued in September 2022, again denying the tenant’s petition. The remand 
decision found that the leak was the same leak that was considered in prior 
cases—and even if the Hearing Officer were to treat the leak as a new leak, the 
Hearing Officer still could have denied the decreased housing services claim 
because the owner acted reasonably to install drain trench and dump to address 
the issue.  
 
On the issue of the refrigerator, the Hearing Officer found that the tenant’s 
testimony of a noisy refrigerator was not credible. The Hearing Officer also based 
this decision on the basis that the tenant received a new refrigerator in 2019, and 

000014



 
6  

that the tenant’s old refrigerator continued working in another unit. The Hearing 
Officer also denied the quiet enjoyment claims based on the noisy refrigerator. 
Both claims for decreased housing services were denied. 
 
On appeal, the tenant argues that the Hearing Officer failed to decide whether 
the water leak was new, that the Hearing Officer failed to precisely explain what 
leak was previously denied and how those leaks relate to the current leak, that 
the resident manager’s testimony that the tenant’s old refrigerator was given to a 
neighbor was not truthful, that the tenant’s inability to determine exact dates of 
sound recordings of the refrigerator did not take away from the fact that the 
refrigerator was loud and disturbed the tenant—and that the Hearing Officer 
misapplied the case of Larson to mean that an intrusive and disruptive sound 
from a noisy refrigerator cannot be the basis for a decreased housing services 
claim. The following issues were presented to the Board: 
 
1.) Does substantial evidence support the Hearing Officer’s conclusion that the 

water leak in this case does not constitute a decreased housing services 
claim? 

2.) Was the denial of water leak claim by the Hearing Officer supported by 
substantial evidence? 

3.) Was the denial of refrigerator claim as a decreased housing service by the 
Hearing Officer supported by substantial evidence?  

 
The tenant representative contended that the reason it was requested for the 
Board to watch the refrigerator video is because there was a notice posted for 
the first hearing date in January 2019, prior to COVID. The tenant representative 
argued that the Hearing Officer said she had no idea what the date was for the 
video because the tenant didn't announce it—but there are records, including the 
video. The tenant representative contended that in this case, after the tenant filed 
this petition, he received an unlawful detainer based on non-payment of rent. The 
tenant representative argued that this important because the tenant was current 
on his rent, his rent was not allowed to be mailed to the landlord or to be 
deposited into a bank account for the landlord—they were only allowed to be 
deposited in an unmanned mailbox in the lobby of the building.  
 
The tenant representative argued that the tenant asked for an appeal previously, 
that the Board determined that the matter depended on how loud the refrigerator 
was, and that the Hearing Officer should review the video and listen to it. The 
tenant representative contended that the tenant had submitted a thumb drive with 
the video and that a copy was requested to be sent to the Board, but the Hearing 
Officer said she didn't have it. The tenant representative argued that it took until 
February 2023 to get a copy of the video after filing a formal request. The tenant 
representative contended that a part of the Hearing Officer’s decision stated that 
the tenant couldn't remember dates of the videos. The tenant representative 
argued that during the hearing, the owner’s representative questioned the tenant 

000015



 
7  

about certain dates with a copy of the petition in front of him, but neither the 
tenant or tenant representative had a copy of the petition in front of them at the 
time—so the tenant responded that he was not sure, that he would have to look 
at the petition, and that the petition would reflect what the dates are. 
  
The tenant representative contended that the decision was not supported by 
substantial evidence because the Hearing Officer based her decision in part on 
the property managers testimony. The tenant representative argued that the 
building was bought, and the new owners were trying to get rid of long-term 
tenants. The tenant representative contended that several evictions took place at 
this property and the other properties that the owners bought in Oakland and that 
uncorroborated evidence supported the denying the refrigerator petition. The 
tenant representative argued that regarding the leak, another Hearing Officer 
made a decision a long time ago—which gave the tenant a rent reduction 
because this storage area that he rents in the garage had become full of mold 
and leaky, and needed to be repaired.  
 
The owner representative contended that the owner objects to the introduction of 
evidence at the appeal hearing. The owner representative argued that the 
Hearing Officer reviewed the record and made findings that not only was the 
refrigerator noise reviewed by the property manager, it was also reviewed by a 
technician that was brought in. The owner representative argued that the 
refrigerator was put in the storage and subsequently was put into another 
tenant’s unit—and that there have been no complaints about it. The owner 
representative contended that the Hearing Officer found that the property 
manager who was at the hearing had credible testimony—and that the Hearing 
Officer is the finder of fact who reviews credibility. The owner representative 
argued that they also object to the reference made to an unlawful detainer case 
and any of its history because it's not a part of this case. The owner 
representative argued that the Hearing Officer would not allow that testimony 
either because she knew that the purpose of it was to prejudice the case and to 
make it appear that something was done inappropriately in another forum. 
 
The owner representative argued that the Hearing Officer’s decision regarding 
the leak was credible, she made a finding that the issue had been raised before, 
and she made a finding that the tenant in his own petition stated that this was the 
same leak that occurred in April. The owner representative contended that there 
is ample evidence to support this and that the Hearing Officer also found that the 
tenant attempted to mislead her when he said he was swimming in water. The 
owner representative argued that the Hearing Officer found out from the tenant’s 
own videos that the water that he was referring to were trickles of water less than 
1/4 inch. The owner representative contended that a standard practice is that if 
you find that a person misrepresents the facts, you can discount or find 
everything that he or she says to not be credible. The owner representative 
argued that this is the Hearing Officer’s job and that she decided the case based 

000016



 
8  

upon substantial evidence in the record. The owner representative contended 
that regarding the refrigerator and breach of quiet enjoyment, RAP and the Board 
does not have authority over those cases and that the Hearing Officer’s decision 
is sustainable by substantial evidence in the record and the decision should be 
affirmed.  

The owner representative argued that the Hearing Officer must make a decision 
based upon the evidence in the record, that the Hearing officer has a right to 
determine the credibility of the witnesses—and that in this case, it was 
determined that the manager, the manager's husband, and the technician 
testified credibly. The owner representative contended that they did not hear, 
see, or discover any problems with the refrigerator—so they placed it in storage 
and then they gave it to somebody else. The owner representative argued that 
regarding the issue of the leak, the tenant signed the petition under penalty of 
perjury, stating that this was the same leak that had not been repaired in a prior 
case. The owner representative contended that the Hearing Officer clearly said 
that the water was water that comes about periodically because the garage is 
below grade and when it rains hard, water comes through—which is a common 
occurrence in garages in Oakland. The owner representative argued that the 
tenant has not demonstrated that there was a decreased service on the garage, 
and that the tenant had the burden of proof, not the owner. The owner 
representative contended that the tenant did not prove that there was a noisy 
refrigerator that disturbed his peace and enjoyment—and that if there was one, 
that's not the kind of case that RAP decides, that claim would have to be pursued 
in court. 

After parties’ arguments, questions to the parties, and Board discussion, Chair 
Ingram moved affirm the Hearing Officer’s decision. Member K. Sims seconded 
the motion. 
 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:  D. Ingram, K. Sims, R. Nickens 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved. 

d. L22-0050, Lu v. Tenants 

Appearances:  Kibret Fisseha Tenant 
       

The owner appellant was not present. Chair Ingram moved dismiss the appeal. 
Member R. Nickens seconded the motion. 

000017



 
9  

 

The Board voted as follows:  
 

Aye:  D. Ingram, K. Sims, R. Nickens 
Nay:   None 
Abstain:  None 

The motion was approved.   

 5.  OPEN FORUM 

a. No members of the public spoke during open forum. 

 

 6.  ADJOURMENT 

a. The meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 

000018



CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT 

 

Case No.:      T19-0186 & T19-0235   

Case Name:      Didrickson v. Dang/Commonwealth Inc.  

Property Address:     2230 Lakeshore Avenue, Oakland, CA 94606   

Parties:               Ted Dang (Owner) 

      Allen Sam (Owner Representative) 

      Carlos & Glenda Didrickson (Tenants)    

  

 

OWNER APPEAL: 

Activity       Date 

Tenant Petition filed (T19-0186)   February 5, 2019 

Tenant Petition filed (T19-0235)   March 26, 2019  

Tenant Exhibits submitted    February 5 & March 26, 2019 

Property Owner Response filed (T19-0186)  July 11, 2019 

Property Owner Exhibits submitted   July 11 & 18, 2019 

Hearing Date (T19-0186 & T19-0235)  September 24, 2019  

Hearing Decision mailed     December 23, 2019 

000019



Tenant Appeal filed     January 13, 2020 

Owner Response to Appeal submitted   January 15, 2020 

Supplemental Explanation of Appeal submitted January 27, 2020 

Appeal Hearing Date     April 8, 2021 

Appeal Decision mailed      May 7, 2021  

Remand Hearing Exhibits submitted   September 27, 2021 

Property Owner Exhibits submitted   September 28, 2021 

Remand Hearing Date     October 4, 2021 

Remand Decision mailed     January 25, 2022 

Owner Appeal filed     February 2, 2022 

 

000020



000021



000022



000023



000024



000025



000026



000027



000028



000029



000030



000031



000032



000033



000034



000035



000036



000037



000038



000039



000040



000041



000042



000043



000044



000045



000046



000047



000048



000049



000050



000051



000052



000053



000054



000055



000056



000057



000058



000059



000060



000061



000062



000063



000064



000065



CITY OF OAKLAND  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Housing, Residential Rent 
and Relocation Board (HRRRB) 

 
 APPEAL DECISION 

 
CASE NUMBER:  T19-0186, T19-0235, Didrickson v. Commonwealth Co. 
 
APPEAL HEARING:  April 8, 2021 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 2230 Lakeshore Avenue, No. 7 
    Oakland, CA 
 
APPEARANCES:   Carlos Didrickson  Tenant Appellant  
    Eric Wright  Tenant Appellant Representative 
    Ted Dang                Owner Respondent 
                             

BACKGROUND 
 

 On February 5, 2019, tenants Glenda Didrickson and Carlos Didrickson filed a 
petition alleging the following decreased housing services: 
 

• Gas heater not working 11/18 to 1/31/19. 

• Patio not replaced (patio boards removed 2/17 with no legal permit). 

• Bedroom vent leaks rainwater when heavy rain. 

• Patio door handle broken; door frame separates from glass. 

The RAP staff sent the owner a copy of the tenant petition on June 25, 2019. 
 The owner filed a timely response to the tenants’ petition on July 11, 2019. 
 

On March 26, 2019, the tenants filed a second supplemental petition alleging 
health and safety code violations in addition to the claim of decreased housing services, 
including:  

• No legal permit to remove patio deck. 

• No legal permit to install heating duct on roof above bedroom. 

• Water dripping from heater duct in bedroom. 

• Sliding patio door frame handle broken, frame shows a gap and separates 

from glass door. 

000066



2 
 

• Electrical breaker trips when multiple appliances on. 

• No smoke/carbon dioxide detector in the living room. 

The second tenant petition cited a building inspection performed by the City of 
Oakland on March 11, 2019 and included as an attachment documentation related to 
said inspection.  

 
The owner did not file a response to the second petition (T19-0235).  
 
The hearing on the tenants’ petitions took place on September 24, 2019. Both 

parties were present. 
RULING ON THE CASE 

 
 The Hearing Officer issued a Hearing Decision on December 23, 2019, denying 
the tenants’ petitions. At the start of the hearing, the Hearing Officer noted that the 
tenants’ petition listed various claims that had already been decided in prior hearing 
decisions, of which the Hearing Officer took official notice1. The hearing was therefore 
limited in scope to only three items in the petitions which had not been addressed in 
prior cases: the gas heater, the smoke/carbon monoxide detectors, and the electric 
breaker.    
 
 The claim regarding the gas heater was denied on the grounds that, based on 
the owner’s testimony, the heater had been repaired, the owner’s response to the repair 
request had been reasonable, and that any delay in completing the repair was due to 
difficulty coordinating and communicating with the tenants.  
 

The claim regarding the smoke/carbon monoxide detectors was also denied on 
the grounds that, based on the owner’s testimony, a detector had been installed, the 
issue had been resolved, and that any delay in installing the detector was due to 
difficulty communicating and coordinating with the tenants, who insisted on being 
present for all repairs.  

 
The claim regarding the electric breaker was denied based on the owner’s 

testimony that the tenants were overloading the circuit breaker, that if the tenants 
stopped turning everything on at once the breaker would not short circuit, and that this 
issue did not affect the habitability of the unit.  
 

GROUNDS FOR APPEAL 
 

 On January 13, 2020, the tenants filed an appeal on the grounds that the hearing 
decision was not supported by substantial evidence. The tenants also alleged that they 
were denied an opportunity to speak about unresolved issues during the hearing, along 
with the building inspector’s report on health and safety violations.  

 

1 See Case Nos. T15-0374, T16-0175, T17-0327, T18-0238 and T18-0305.  

 

000067



3 
 

 
 On January 27, 2020, the tenants filed a supplemental explanation of the 
grounds for their appeal, raising the following issues: 
 

1) The Hearing Officer was biased and gave preferential treatment towards the 

property owner. 

 

2) The hearing decision is not supported by substantial evidence. 

The tenants contend that only three issues were addressed in the hearing even 
though the tenants presented evidence of two additional issues in their petitions. 

 
a. The CO-smoke detector issue had not in fact been resolved, which the tenant 

stated during the hearing and which was reflected in the Notice of Violation 

submitted with the tenants’ petition. The tenants also disputed insisting on 

being present for this repair. 

 
b. The finding regarding the electric breaker was not supported by substantial 

evidence because the property manager who testified on this issue was not 

an electrician and knew nothing about electrical matters, the tenants never 

stated that the problem only occurred when everything was turned on at once, 

and the conclusion that the problem would be resolved by not turning on 

everything at once was not supported by fact. Moreover, the tenants disputed 

that the issue did not affect habitability. 

 
c. The problems with the patio door handle and leaking bedroom vent should 

have been addressed but were not.   

 
BOARD APPEAL DECISION 

 
              

After arguments and rebuttal made by both parties, Board questions to the 
parties and Board discussion, A. Graham made a motion to remand the case to the 
Hearing Officer. R. Stone offered a friendly amendment to remand the case to the 
Hearing Officer to address only (1) whether the issues in the March 19, 2019, Notice of 
Violation were resolved, (2) if the issues constituted reduction of housing service, and, if 
so, (3) the value, if any, of the reduction, with the parties allowed to submit new 
evidence on remand only with regard to the Notice of Violation and any subsequent City 
action regarding that Notice. A. Graham accepted the amendment. R. Stone seconded 
the motion.  

 
The Board voted as follows:  
 
Aye: T. Hall, R. Auguste, R. Stone, A. Graham, S. Devuono-Powell  
Nay: K. Friedman  
Abstain: 0  

000068



000069



 PROOF OF SERVICE 

 Case Number T19-0186 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 

Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 

California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 

California 94612.   

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 

Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 

Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

 

Documents Included 

Appeal Decision  

 

Owner 

Ted Dang, 421 Associates 

1305 Franklin Street Suite 500 

Oakland, CA 94612 

Owner Representative 

Allen Sam 

1305 Franklin Street #500 

Oakland, CA 94612 

Tenant 

Carlos & Glenda Didrickson 

2230 Lakeshore Avenue Unit 7 

Oakland, CA 94606 

 
I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing 

correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 

receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 

Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 

business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 

and correct. Executed on May 07, 2021 in Oakland, CA. 

 
______________________________ 

Brittni Lothlen 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000070



000071



000072



000073



000074



000075



000076



000077



000078



000079



000080



000081



000082



000083



000084



000085



000086



000087



000088



000089



000090



000091



000092



000093



000094



000095



000096



000097



000098



000099



000100



000101



000102



000103



000104



000105



000106



000107



000108



000109



000110



000111



000112



000113



000114



000115



000116



000117



000118



000119



000120



CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT 

 

Case No.:      T22-0202   

Case Name:      Joseph v. Jones   

Property Address:     567 Oakland Avenue, Oakland, CA 94611   

Parties:               Robert Jones (Owner) 
      Nicholas Drobocky, Woodminister Real Estate Inc (Manager)  
      Kimberly Roehn (Owner Representative) 
      Michael Joseph (Tenant)     
 

OWNER APPEAL: 

Activity       Date 

Tenant Petition filed     November 10, 2022 

Property Owner Response filed    December 7, 2022  

Owner Documents submitted    December 7, 2022 

Owner Documents submitted    December 8, 2022 

Exhibits submitted      December 10, 2022 

Notice of Incomplete Tenant Petition mailed  December 13, 2022 

POS submitted      December 29, 2022 

000121



Notice of Incomplete Owner Response mailed January 10, 2023 

Owner Documents submitted    January 26, 2023 

Administrative Decision mailed    February 28, 2023  

Owner Appeal filed     March 20, 2023  

 

000122



000123



000124



000125



000126



000127



Case T22-0202

Property Address 567 OAKLAND AV, 304

Parties

Party Name Address Mailing Address
Tenant Michael Joseph 567 Oakland Avenue

304
(909) 907-4559 Oakland, CA 94611
michael@unce.us

Manager Nicholas Drobocky 5021 Woodminster Lane 5021 Woodminster Lane
Woodminster Real Estate Inc
(510) 336-0202 Oakland, CA 94602 Oakland, California 94602

Owner Robert Duncan Jones 2922 Thorne Creek Ln 2922 Thorne Creek Ln
Houston, TX 77073 Houston, Texas 77073

Business Information

Date of which you aquired the building 2-6-1979

Total Number of Units 1

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? No

Type of Unit Condominium

Is the contested increase a capital improvements increase? No

Business License 00059896

Have you paid your business license? Yes

Have you paid the Rent Adjustment Program Service Fee ($101 per unit)? Yes

Rent History

The tenant moved into the rental unit on 5-1-2021

Initial monthly rent 2050

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
Owner Response

City of Oakland 

000128



Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled
Notice to Tenants of Residential Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP Notice”)
to all of the petitioning tenants?

Yes

On what date was the notice first given? 4-17-2021

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
Owner Response

City of Oakland 

000129



Are you claiming an Exemption? Yes

The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the
Costa Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If
claiming exemption under Costa-Hawkins, please answer the following
questions:

Yes

1. Did the prior tenant leave a�er being given a notice to quit (Civil Code
Section 1946)?

No

2. Did the prior tenant leave a�er being given a notice of rent increase
(Civil Code Section 827)?

No

3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause? No

4. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety
codes in the unit or building?

No

5. Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold
separately?

Yes

6. Did the current tenant(s) have roommates when they moved in? No

7a. Type of unit you rent Condominium

7b. Did you purchase the unit? Yes

8. Did you purchase the entire building? No

9. From whom did you purchase it: Eugene S.
and Mattie S.
Lewis

The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a
governmental unit, agency or authority other than the City of Oakland Rent
Adjustment Ordinance.

No

The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued
for it on or a�er January 1, 1983.

No

On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a
motel, hotel, or boarding house for less than 30 days.

No

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
Owner Response

City of Oakland 

000130



The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or
more of the average basic cost of new construction.

No

The unit is an accommodation in a hospital, convent, monastery, extended
care facility, convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory
owned and operated by an educational institution.

No

The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner
occupies one of the units continuously as his or her principal residence and
has done so for at least one year.

No

Owner Responses on Petition Grounds

Questions Owner Response

Tenant did not receive proper notice, was not properly
served, and/or was not provided with the required RAP form
with rent increase(s)

Tenant was served by mail on October
26, 2022 with the 30-Day Notice of

Change of Monthly Rent and the Notice
to Tenants of the Residential Rent

Adjustment Program.  Proof of Service
can be provided.

A government agency has cited the unit for serious health,
safety, fire, or building code violations.

No Response Submitted

The owner is providing tenant(s) with fewer housing services
and/or charging for services originally paid for by the owner.

No Response Submitted

Tenant(s) is/are being unlawfully charged for utilities. No Response Submitted

Rent was not reduced a�er a prior rent increase period for
capital improvements.

No Response Submitted

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
Owner Response

City of Oakland 

000131



Tenant is contesting exemption based on fraud or mistake. The property at 567 Oakland Ave., Unit
304 is a condominium exempt from rent

increase limitations.

Tenant’s initial rent amount was unlawful because owner was
not permitted to set initial rent without limitation (O.M.C. §
8.22.080C). 

No Response Submitted

 
 

I/We declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that
everything I/We said in this response is true and that all the documents attached to the response
are true copies of the originals.
 
 
 

Carolann Hinkle 12/7/2022
Signature Date

---------------END OF RESPONSE---------------

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
Owner Response

City of Oakland 

000132



CITY OF OAKLAND

BUSINESS LOCATION

EXPIRATION DATE

BUSINESS TAX CERTIFICATE

The issuing of a Business Tax Certificate is for revenue purposes only. It does not relieve the taxpayer from the responsibility of 

complying with the requirements of any other agency of the City of Oakland and/or any other ordinance, law or regulation of the 

State of California, or any other governmental agency. The Business Tax Certificate expires on December 31st of each year. Per 

Section 5.04.190(A), of the O.M.C. you are allowed a renewal grace period until March 1st the following year.

BUSINESS TYPE

JONES ROBERT D JR

JONES ROBERT D JR

WOODMINSTER REALTY

5021 WOODMINSTER LN

OAKLAND, CA 94602-2694

Rental - Residential Property

12/31/2022

567 OAKLAND AVE 304

OAKLAND, CA 94611-5046

ACCOUNT

NUMBER

00059896

M

A BUSINESS TAX CERTIFICATE 

IS REQUIRED FOR EACH 

BUSINESS LOCATION AND IS 

NOT VALID FOR ANY OTHER 

ADDRESS.

PUBLIC INFORMATION ABOVE 

THIS LINE TO BE 

CONSPICUOUSLY POSTED!

ALL OAKLAND BUSINESSES 

MUST OBTAIN A VALID 

ZONING CLEARANCE TO 

OPERATE YOUR BUSINESS 

LEGALLY. RENTAL OF REAL 

PROPERTY IS EXCLUDED 

FROM ZONING.

DBA

Starting January 1, 2021, Assembly 

Bill 1607 requires the prevention of 

gender-based discrimination of 

business establishments. A full notice 

is available in English or other 

languages by going to: 

https://www.dca.ca.gov/publications

000133



000134



000135



000136



Wednesday, October 20, 2021

No Images Available

LOCATION

Property Address 567 Oakland Ave
Oakland, CA 94611-5094

 

Subdivision  

Carrier Route C038  

County Alameda County, CA  

GENERAL PARCEL INFORMATION

APN/Tax ID 10-815-54  

Alt. APN 010 -0815-054-00  

Account Number  

Tax Area 17-001  

2010 Census Trct/Blk 4040/1  

Assessor Roll Year 2021  

PROPERTY SUMMARY

Property Type Residential  

Land Use Condominium Unit Residential  

Improvement Type Condominium Unit Residential  

Square Feet 745

# of Buildings 1  

CURRENT OWNER

Name Jones Robert D Jr  

Mailing Address 2922 Thorne Creek Ln
Houston, TX 77073-3424

 

Owner Occupied No  

SCHOOL INFORMATION

These are the closest schools to the property

Piedmont Avenue Elementary School   0.6 mi

Elementary: K to 5   Distance

Westlake Middle School   0.6 mi

Middle: 6 to 8   Distance

Oakland Technical High School   0.8 mi

High: 9 to 12   Distance

SALES HISTORY THROUGH 10/04/2021

Date Date RecordedAmount Buyer/Owners Seller Instrument No. Parcels Book/Page
Or
Document#

3/1/1979 3/1/1979 Jones Robert D Jr 79038467

TAX ASSESSMENT

Tax Assessment 2021   Change (%)  2020   Change (%)  2019  

Assessed Land $59,084.00  $606.00 (1.0%)  $58,478.00  $1,146.00 (2.0%)  $57,332.00  

COPYRIGHT © 2021 COURTHOUSE RETRIEVAL SYSTEM, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
Information Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed.

000137



Assessed Improvements $41,441.00  $425.00 (1.0%)  $41,016.00  $804.00 (2.0%)  $40,212.00  

Total Assessment $100,525.00  $1,031.00 (1.0%)  $99,494.00  $1,950.00 (2.0%)  $97,544.00  

Exempt Reason

% Improved 41%

TAXES

Tax Year City Taxes County Taxes Total Taxes

2020 $2,721.30

2019 $2,525.06

2018 $2,475.94

2017 $2,345.92

2016 $2,178.78

2015 $2,163.20

2014 $2,078.76

2013 $2,053.48

MORTGAGE HISTORY

No mortgages were found for this parcel.

FORECLOSURE HISTORY

No foreclosures were found for this parcel.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: BUILDING

Building # 1

Type Condominium Unit
Residential

Condition Units

Year Built 1970 Effective Year Stories

BRs 1 Baths 1  F   H Rooms

Total Sq. Ft. 745

Building Square Feet (Living Space) Building Square Feet (Other)

- CONSTRUCTION      

Quality B Roof Framing

Shape Roof Cover Deck

Partitions Cabinet Millwork

Common Wall Floor Finish

Foundation Interior Finish

Floor System Air Conditioning

Exterior Wall Heat Type

Structural Framing Bathroom Tile

Fireplace Plumbing Fixtures

- OTHER      

Occupancy Building Data Source

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: EXTRA FEATURES

No extra features were found for this parcel.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: LOT

Land Use Condominium Unit Residential Lot Dimensions

Block/Lot   Lot Square Feet 22,133

COPYRIGHT © 2021 COURTHOUSE RETRIEVAL SYSTEM, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
Information Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed.

Property Report for 567 OAKLAND AVE, cont.

000138



Latitude/Longitude 37.820537°/-122.251891° Acreage 0.51

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: UTILITIES/AREA

Gas Source Road Type

Electric Source Topography

Water Source District Trend

Sewer Source School District

Zoning Code    

Owner Type    

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Subdivision Plat Book/Page  

Block/Lot   Tax Area 17-001

Description

FEMA FLOOD ZONES

Zone Code Flood Risk BFE Description FIRM Panel ID
FIRM Panel Eff.
Date

X Minimal Area of minimal flood hazard, usually depicted on FIRMs as
above the 500-year flood level.

065048-06001C0059G 08/03/2009

COPYRIGHT © 2021 COURTHOUSE RETRIEVAL SYSTEM, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
Information Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed.

Property Report for 567 OAKLAND AVE, cont.

000139



000140



000141



2021-2022 INTERNET  COPY
For Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2021 and Ending June 30, 2022

ALAMEDA COUNTY
SECURED PROPERTY TAX STATEMENT

1221 Oak Street, Room 131
Oakland, California  94612

Parcel Number Tracer Number Tax-Rate Area Special Handling
10-815-54 02602500 17-001

Location of Property
567 OAKLAND AVE, OAKLAND
Assessed to on January 1, 2021

ASSESSEE NAME AND ADDRESS ARE NOT AVAILABLE ONLINE
PER CA GOV CODE §6254.21

THIS IS NOT AN OFFICIAL BILL

Fixed Charges and/or Special Assessments
Description Phone Amount

   MOSQ MSR K 1982
   CSA PARAMEDIC
   VEC CNTRL MSR A 84
   CITY EMERG MEDICAL
   CITY PARAMEDIC SRV
   CSA LEAD ABATEMENT
   OUSD 2008MEASURE G
   PERALTA 2018MEAS E
 * OUSD 2014MEASURE N
 * OUSD 2016MEASUREG1
   VIOLENCE PREV TAX
   CITY LIBRARY SRV-D
   MEAS-W OAKLAND VPT
 * 2020 OAK MEASURE Q
   SFBRA MEASURE AA
   FLOOD BENEFIT 12
   HAZ WASTE PROGRAM
   VECTOR CNTRL ASMT
   MOSQUITO ASMT 2008
   EBRPD CFD NO A/C-3
   AC TRANSIT MEAS VV
   CITY LIBRARY SERV
 * Possible Sr Exemption - Call Agency
Additional Total from Reverse Side

800-273-5167
925-867-3400
800-273-5167
510-238-2942
510-238-2942
510-567-8280
510-879-8884
800-792-8021
510-879-8884
510-879-8884
510-238-2942
510-238-2942
855-831-1188
510-238-2942
888-508-8157
510-670-5212
800-273-5167
800-273-5167
800-273-5167
888-512-0316
800-273-5167
510-238-2942

1.74
35.56

7.20
16.22
12.92
10.00

195.00
48.00

120.00
120.00
118.76

83.94
3,000.00

153.52
12.00

1.30
6.64
3.04
1.50

12.00
96.00

114.50

202.76
  Total Fixed Charges and/or Special Assessments 4,372.60

Tax Computation Worksheet
Description Full Valuation x Tax Rate = Tax Amount

LAND
IMPROVEMENTS
FIXTURES
TOTAL REAL PROPERTY
PERSONAL PROPERTY
GROSS ASSESSMENT & TAX
HOMEOWNERS EXEMPTION
OTHER EXEMPTION
TOTAL AD VALOREM TAX

59,084
41,441

100,525

100,525

100,525

1.3741 %

1.3741 %

1,381.30

1,381.30

5,753.90

First Installment Second Installment Total Amount Due
$ 2,876.95 $ 2,876.95 $ 5,753.90

SECOND INSTALLMENT PAYMENT, 2021-2022
PARCEL NO. 10-815-54
TRACER NO. 026025002 INTERNET COPY

THIS AMOUNT DUE FEB 1, 2022 ==> $ 2,876.95

After APRIL 10, 2022 pay

(Includes delinquent penalty of 10% and $10.00 cost)
$ 3,174.64

Amounts Not Valid After
Thu, Jun 30, 2022

Make checks payable to: Henry C. Levy, Tax Collector, Alameda County

22022 2026025002 1000287695 00000000

FIRST INSTALLMENT PAYMENT, 2021-2022
PARCEL NO. 10-815-54
TRACER NO. 026025001 INTERNET COPY

THIS AMOUNT DUE NOV 1, 2021 ==> $ 2,876.95
After DECEMBER 10, 2021 pay

(Includes delinquent penalty of 10%)
$ 3,164.64

Amounts Not Valid After
Thu, Jun 30, 2022

$ 5,753.90
Make checks payable to: Henry C. Levy, Tax Collector, Alameda County

22022 4026025001 1000287695 00000000

Tax-Rate Breakdown
Taxing Agency Tax Rate Ad Valorem Tax

VOTER APPROVED DEBT SERVICE:
COUNTYWIDE TAX

COUNTY GO BOND
CITY OF OAKLAND 1
SCHOOL UNIFIED
SCHOOL COMM COLL
BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT
EAST BAY REGIONAL PARK

1.0000 %

0.0041 %
0.2011 %
0.1202 %
0.0407 %
0.0060 %
0.0020 %

1,005.25

4.11
202.16
120.83

40.91
6.03
2.01

TOTAL AD VALOREM TAX (AV TAX) 1.3741 % 1,381.30

Please Read Important Messages

A fee of $61.00 will be imposed on all returned or
dishonored payments.

ECheck is free of charge; Accepted through
June 30, 2022 @http://www.acgov.org/propertytax/.

Visa, Mastercard, Discover, or American Express credit
cards accepted by phone (510)272-6800 or online
@http://www.acgov.org/propertytax/, mobile
@www.acgov.org/mobile/apps/ through June 30, 2022. A
convenience fee equal to 2.5% of the tax amount due will
be added to your total payment.

Subscribe to receive email alerts about important property
tax dates online @http://www.acgov.org/propertytax/.

This bill is as of October 20, 2021 3:46 PM and may not
include pending payments and roll corrections.

Please See Reverse For More Information

Tax Collector's Office
Payment Questions/Credit Card Payments
(510) 272-6800

Assessor's Office
Valuation/Exemption
(510) 272-3787    (510) 272-3770

Henry C. Levy, Treasurer and Tax Collector

Ad Valorem Tax plus Special Assessments

000142



Phone Amount

202.76  Total Additional Fixed Charges and/or Special Assessments

IMPORTANT REMINDERS
1. Partial payments are not acceptable - payments made for less than the total

installment due will be returned to the taxpayer.
2. Notices will not be mailed when the second installment is due. Mark your calendar or

subscribe to e-mail alerts online @ www.acgov.org/propertytax.
3. Filing an application for reduced assessment does not relieve the applicant from the

obligations to pay the taxes on the subject property before the applicable due date
shown on the tax bill. If a reduction is granted, a proportionate refund of taxes will be
made by the County Auditor's Office.

4. New owners and present owners with new construction may be required to pay a
Supplemental tax bill. Supplemental tax bills are separate from and in addition to this
annual bill and any previous or subsequent Supplemental bills.

INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR 2021-2022 SECURED TAX BILL
1. Property Assessment and Attachment of Tax Lien: The Assessor annually assesses

all the property in the county, except state-assessed property, to the person owning,
claiming, possessing, or controlling it at 12:01 a.m. January 1, and a lien for taxes attaches
at that time preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.

(a) If you disagree with a change in the assessed value as shown on the tax bill, you may
have the right to an informal assessment review by contacting the Assessor's Office. If
you disagree with the results of the informal review, you have the right to file an
application for reduction in assessment for the following year with the Alameda County
Assessment Appeals Board from July 2 to September 15. The Assessment Appeals
Board may be contacted at the County Administration Building, Room 536, 1221 Oak
Street, Oakland, California 94612 or by calling (510) 272-6352.

(b)Application for review and equalization of an assessment made outside of the regular
assessment period must be filed with the Alameda County Assessment Appeals Board
no later than 60 days from the first notification of that assessment.

2. Your Tax Collector does not determine the amount you pay in taxes. Tax amounts are
computed by multiplying the property's full value by the tax rates of the various taxing
agencies. Fixed charges and/or special assessments such as Flood Control Benefit
Assessment, sewer service, special assessment improvement bond charges, delinquent
garbage liens, etc. from cities and districts are added to the computed tax amounts to
arrive at the total amount due on the bill.

3. The Total Amount Due is payable in two installments:
(a)The  1st  installment  is  due  on NOVEMBER 1, 2021 and  is  delinquent  at  5  p.m.

DECEMBER 10, 2021 after which a 10% penalty attaches.
(b)The  2nd  installment  is  due  on FEBRUARY 1, 2022 and  is  delinquent  at  5  p.m.

APRIL 10, 2022 after which a 10% penalty and $10 cost attach.
(c) In order to pay both installments at the same time, remit the TOTAL AMOUNT DUE

with both installment payment stubs by DECEMBER 10, 2021.
(d) If above delinquent due dates fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, no penalty is

charged if payment is made by 5 p.m. on the next business day.

4. If  the  amount  due  is  unpaid  at  5  p.m.  June 30,  2022, it  will  be  necessary  to  pay
(a) delinquent penalties, (b) costs, (c) redemption penalties, and (d) a redemption fee. If
June 30 falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, no redemption penalties shall attach
if payment is made by 5 p.m. on the next business day. Property delinquent for the first
year shall be declared defaulted for non-payment of taxes. After 5 years, the Tax Collector
has the power to sell tax-defaulted property that is not redeemed.

5. Full Value Exemption Legend:
C- Church D- Welfare/Hospital
G- Cemetery H- Homeowner
M- Miscellaneous R- Religious
S- Public School V- Veteran
W- Welfare/Others X- Combination

6. Homeowners' Exemption. If  your  tax  bill  shows  zero  value
on the Homeowners' Exemption line and you owned and
occupied this property on January 1, 2021, you may be eligible
for a partial (80%) homeowners' exemption if you file a claim
with the Assessor on or before December 10, 2021. The
homeowners' exemption tax reduction is attributable to the
state-financed homeowners' tax relief program.

7. Questions about property valuation, exemptions,
payments and fixed charges and/or special assessments
should be directed to the telephone numbers indicated on the
front of this bill.

8. Property Tax Postponement for Senior Citizens, Blind, Or
Disabled Persons. The State Controller's Office(SCO)
administers the Property Tax Postponement(PTP) program,
which allows eligible homeowners to postpone payment of
current-year property taxes on their residence. PTP
applications are accepted from October 1 to February 10 each
year. For more information, go to http://www.sco.ca.gov/
ardtax_prop_tax_postponement.html. If you have any
questions, call (800)952-5661 or email postponement@sco.ca.

SEND THIS STUB WITH YOUR 2nd
INSTALLMENT PAYMENT
Due:              FEBRUARY 1, 2022
Delinquent:           5 p.m., APRIL 10, 2022

Do Not Use This Stub After June 30, 2022
2nd INSTALLMENT PAYMENT CANNOT BE
ACCEPTED UNLESS 1st INSTALLMENT IS PAID

SEND THIS STUB WITH YOUR 1st
INSTALLMENT PAYMENT
Due:              NOVEMBER 1, 2021
Delinquent:           5 p.m., DECEMBER 10, 2021

Do Not Use This Stub After June 30, 2022
TO PAY BOTH INSTALLMENTS SEND            STUBSBOTH

   EBMUD WETWEATHER
 * EAST BAY TRAIL LLD
   CITY LANDSCP/LIGHT

866-403-2683
888-512-0316
510-238-2942

120.34
5.44

76.98

Additional Fixed Charges and/or Special Assessments
Description

000143



000144



000145



000146



000147



000148



000149



000150



000151



000152



000153



000154



000155



000156



CITY OF OAKLAND  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

NOTICE OF INCOMPLETE TENANT PETITION 

 

CASE NUMBER:   T22-0202  

CASE NAME:   Joseph v. Jones   

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 567 Oakland Avenue, Unit 304 

 

The Rent Adjustment Program (hereinafter “RAP”) received a Tenant Petition 

from you on November 10, 2022 

In order to be complete and considered filed, a petition by a tenant must include: 

a. A statement that the tenant is current on their rent or lawfully 

withholding rent; 

 

b. A substantially completed petition on the form prescribed by the Rent 

Adjustment Program signed under oath; and 

 

c. If your claim involves a claim of decreased housing services, a statement 

of the services that have been reduced or eliminated (along with a 

document listing the claimed value of the services.) 

 

d. Proof of service by first-class mail or in person of the tenant petition and 

any supporting documents on the opposing party (owner, subtenant, or 

primary tenant) 

The petition which you attempted to file was incomplete. The chart below indicates 

what is missing from your filing: 

 

Name of Document Needed 

Proof of service of the tenant petition and any 

supporting documents on the Owner. 

 

X 

000157



 

2 | P a g e  

 

Notice to Property Owner of Tenant Petition 

Page was not affixed to the front of the Petition 

served on the property Owner (see attached 

Proof of Service Instructions) 

 

X 

 

 

You have 30 days from the date of the mailing of this letter to provide a completed 

petition. If you do not do so, your petition will be dismissed. Since your petition is 

not complete, the RAP is unable to accept the petition. 

If you have any questions or concerns, consult the undersigned by email or phone. 

The email address is hearingsunit@oakandca.gov and the telephone number is 

510-238-3721. 

 

Dated:  December 12, 2022    City of Oakland 

Rent Adjustment Program 

 

 

000158



[AFFIX THIS PAGE TO FRONT OF PETITION WHEN SERVING PROPERTY OWNER] 

[AFFIX THIS PAGE TO FRONT OF PETITION WHEN SERVING PROPERTY OWNER] 

  

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT 
PETITION 

 

ATTENTION: IMMEDIATE ACTION REQUIRED 

If you are receiving this NOTICE together with a completed TENANT PETITION form, it means 
that a tenant has filed a case against you with the Oakland Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) 
(commonly referred to as the “Rent Board”). 

 YOU MUST FILE A RESPONSE WITHIN 35 CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE PETITION 

WAS MAILED TO YOU (30 DAYS IF DELIVERED IN-PERSON). 
 

 TO RESPOND: 

 

1) Complete a PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form found on the RAP website. 

(https://www.oaklandca.gov/services/respond-to-a-tenant-petition-for-the-rent-adjustment-

program) 

2) Serve a copy of your PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form on the tenant (or the 

tenant’s representative listed on the petition) by mail or personal delivery. 

3) Complete a PROOF OF SERVICE form (which is attached to the Response form and also 

available on the website) and provide a copy to the tenant (or tenant’s representative) 

together with your PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form. 

4) Submit your PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form and completed PROOF OF 

SERVICE* form to RAP through RAP’s online portal, via email, or by mail.  

*Note: The Response will not be considered complete until a PROOF OF SERVICE is 
filed indicating that the tenant has been served with a copy. 

DOCUMENT REVIEW: The tenant is required to serve on you all documents the tenant filed in 
this case in addition to the petition. Additionally, all documents are available for review at RAP.  

FOR ASSISTANCE: Contact a RAP Housing Counselor at (510) 238-3721 or by email at 
RAP@oaklandca.gov. Additional information is also available on the RAP website and on the 
PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form.

CITY OF OAKLAND 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 Oakland, CA 

94612-0243 

(510) 238-3721 

CA Relay Service 711 

www.oaklandca.gov/RAP 

 

 

 

000159

https://www.oaklandca.gov/services/respond-to-a-tenant-petition-for-the-rent-adjustment-program
https://www.oaklandca.gov/services/respond-to-a-tenant-petition-for-the-rent-adjustment-program
http://www.oaklandca.gov/RAP


 

Page 1 of 2 
Proof of Service 

Rev. 1/5/2021 

 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 

Oakland, CA 94612-0243 

(510) 238-3721 

CA Relay Service 711 

www.oaklandca.gov/RAP 

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

 

 

 

PROOF OF SERVICE 

 

NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION (PLUS ANY ATTACHMENTS) 
ON THE PROPERTY OWNER PRIOR TO FILING YOUR PETITION WITH RAP. You must include a 
copy of the RAP form “NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION” (the preceding 
page of this petition packet) and a completed PROOF OF SERVICE form together with your 
Petition. 

1) Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner of service and the person(s) served.  
2) Provide a completed copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the person(s) being served together with the 

documents being served. 

3) File a completed copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form with RAP together with your Petition. Your Petition 
will not be considered complete until this form has been filed indicating that service has occurred. 

On the following date: _____/_____/_____ I served a copy of (check all that apply):   

  

 TENANT PETITION plus ______ attached pages (number of pages attached to Petition not 
counting the Petition form, NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION, or 
PROOF OF SERVICE) 

 NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION 

 Other: ___________________________________________ 

 
by the following means (check one):

 United States Mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package addressed 
to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and deposited the sealed envelope 
with the United States Postal Service, with the postage fully prepaid. 

 Commercial Carrier. I deposited the document(s) with a commercial carrier, using a 
service at least as expeditious as first-class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid, 
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below. 

 Personal Service. I personally delivered the document(s) to the person(s) at the 
address(es) listed below or I left the document(s) at the address(es) with some person not 
younger than 18 years of age. 

 

PERSON(S) SERVED: 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

000160

http://www.oaklandca.gov/RAP


 

  

Page 2 of 2 
Proof of Service 

Rev. 1/5/2021 

 

 

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 

 

_______________________________________________ 

           PRINTED NAME 

 

 __________________________________________   ____________________ 

SIGNATURE         DATE SIGNED

000161



Page 1 of 2 
Information Sheet 

Rev. 1/5/2021 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 
___________REGARDING FILING YOUR PETITION__________ 

TIME TO FILE YOUR PETITION 

Your Tenant Petition form must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program within the required time limit for 
filing. RAP staff cannot grant an extension of time to file your Petition.  

 For Petitions contesting a rent increase, you have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or 
from the first date you received the RAP Notice (whichever is later) to file a Petition. If you did not 
receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received one in the past, 
you have 120 days to file a Petition. If you have never received a RAP Notice, you may contest 
all rent increases.  

 For Petitions claiming decreased housing services, you have 90 days from either the date you 
first became aware of the decreased service or the date you first received the RAP Notice 
(whichever is later) to file a Petition. If the decreased housing service is ongoing, you may file a 
Petition at any time. See O.M.C. §§ 8.22.090 (A)(2)-(3) for more information. 

CONTACT A HOUSING COUNSELOR TO REVIEW YOUR PETITION BEFORE SUBMITTING 

To make an appointment, email RAP@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238-3721. Although the Housing Resource 
Center is temporarily closed for drop-in services, assistance is available by email or telephone.  

DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED IN SUPPORT OF PETITION 

All attachments submitted together with your Petition must be numbered sequentially. You may submit 
additional evidence in support of your Petition up to seven days before your hearing. You must serve a copy 
of any documents filed with RAP on the other party and submit a PROOF OF SERVICE form.  

SERVICE ON PROPERTY OWNER 

You are required to serve ALL the following documents on the property owner and/or the property owner’s 
representative:  

1. Copy of RAP form entitled “NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION” (included 
in petition packet and available on RAP website).  

2. Copy of completed Petition form and attachments. 
3. Completed PROOF OF SERVICE form (included in petition packet and available on RAP website).  

You may serve the property owner and/or the owner’s representative by mail or personal delivery. A copy of the 
completed PROOF OF SERVICE form must be submitted to RAP together with your Petition. Your Petition will 
not be considered complete until a PROOF OF SERVICE form is filed indicating that the owner has been served.  

FILING YOUR PETITION 

Although RAP normally does not accept filings by email or fax, RAP is temporarily accepting Petitions via 
email during the COVID-19 local state of emergency. You may also fill out and submit your Petition online 
through the RAP website or deliver the Petition to the RAP office by mail. If the RAP office is closed on the 
last day to file, the time to file is extended to the next day the office is open. If you send your Petition by 
mail, a postmark date does not count as the date it was received. Remember to file a PROOF OF 
SERVICE form together with your Petition. 

 
 
 

000162

mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov


 

  

Page 2 of 2 
Information Sheet 

Rev. 1/22/2021 

Via email: hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov 
 
Mail to: City of Oakland 

Rent Adjustment Program 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Ste. 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 

 
File online: https://www.oaklandca.gov/services/file-a-tenant-petition  

 
In person: TEMPORARILY CLOSED 

City of Oakland 
Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza Suite 
5313 Reception area 
Use Rent Adjustment date-stamp to stamp your documents to verify timely 
delivery and place them in RAP self-service drop box. 

 
 

AFTER PETITION IS FILED 

The property owner has 30 days after service of the Petition to file a Response (35 days if served by 
mail). The property owner must serve you with a copy of their Response form and any attachments filed 
with the Response. In most cases, RAP will schedule a hearing. You will be mailed a Notice of Hearing 
indicating the hearing date. If you are unable to attend the hearing, contact RAP as soon as possible. The 
hearing will only be postponed for good cause. 

FILE/DOCUMENT REVIEW 

Either party may contact RAP to review the case file and/or to request copies of any documents 
pertaining to the case at any time prior to the scheduled hearing.  

 JURISDICTION 

Please note that if your rent is controlled or subsidized by any other governmental agency, your unit is not 
covered by the Rent Adjustment Ordinance and the Oakland Rent Adjustment Program does not have 
jurisdiction over your claim. O.M.C. § 8.22.030 (A)(1). 

 FOR MORE INFORMATION  

Additional information on the petition and hearing process is located on the RAP website and in the Residential 
Rent Adjustment Program Ordinance and Regulations (see Oakland Municipal Code 8.22.010 et seq.). For more 
information on rent increases, including the list of the annual allowable CPI rates and calculators for certain 
justifications, see: https://www.oaklandca.gov/resources/learn-more-about-allowable-rent-increases or you can 
refer to the Guide on Oakland Rental Housing Law at https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Guide-
to-Oakland-Rental-Housing-Law-1.pdf. You may also contact a RAP Housing Counselor with questions at any 
time by emailing RAP@oaklandca.gov or calling (510) 238-3721. 

 

000163

mailto:hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov
https://www.oaklandca.gov/services/file-a-tenant-petition
https://www.oaklandca.gov/resources/learn-more-about-allowable-rent-increases
https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Guide-to-Oakland-Rental-Housing-Law-1.pdf
https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Guide-to-Oakland-Rental-Housing-Law-1.pdf


 PROOF OF SERVICE 

 Case Number: T22-0202 

Case Name: Joseph v. Jones 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 

Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 

California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 

California 94612.   

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 

Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 

Plaza, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

 

Documents Included 

Notice of Incomplete Tenant Petition  

Proof of Service form 

Manager 

Nicholas Drobocky, Woodminster Real Estate Inc 

5021 Woodminster Lane 

Oakland, CA 94602 

Owner 

Robert Duncan Jones 

2922 Thorne Creek Ln 

Houston, TX 77073 

Tenant 

Michael Joseph 

567 Oakland Avenue 304 

Oakland, CA 94611 

 
I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing 

correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 

receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 

Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 

business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 

and correct. Executed on December 13, 2022 in Oakland, California. 

 
 

______________________________ 

Brittni Lothlen 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000164



I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that
on 11-10-2022 I, Michael Joseph, served a copy of the following document(s), Tenant
Petition, the Notice to Property Owner of Tenant Petition and all attached 0 pages, to each
opposing party, whose names and addresses are listed below, by United States mail. 

Names of Served Document(s)

Addresse(s) Information

Addressee:       Robert Duncan Jones
2922 Thorne Creek Ln
Houston TX 77073

Addressee:       Nicholas Drobocky
5021 Woodminster Ln
Oakland CA 94602

Michael Joseph 11-10-2022

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

PROOF OF SERVICE
TENANT PETITION

Electronic Petition number: 16261

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed:   11-10-2022

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

PROOF OF SERVICE
TENANT PETITION

Electronic Petition number: 16261

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed:   11-10-2022

000165



     Michael Joseph      

SIGNATURE OF PETITIONER OR
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE:   11/10/2022

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

PROOF OF SERVICE
TENANT PETITION

Electronic Petition number: 16261

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed:   11-10-2022

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

PROOF OF SERVICE
TENANT PETITION

Electronic Petition number: 16261

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed:   11-10-2022

000166



CITY OF OAKLAND  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF INCOMPLETE OWNER RESPONSE 

 

CASE NUMBER:   T22-0202  

CASE NAME:   Joseph v. Jones 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 567 Oakland Avenue, Unit 304 
     Oakland, CA  
 

The Rent Adjustment Program (hereinafter “RAP”) received a Property Owner Response from 
you on December 7, 2022 

To be complete and considered filed, a response by a property owner must include:1 

a. Proof of payment of the City of Oakland Business License Tax; 
 
b. proof of payment of the Rent Program Service Fee;2 
 
c. Evidence that the Owner has provided the RAP Notice to all Tenants affected by the 
petition or response.3 
 
d. A substantially completed petition on the form prescribed by the RAP signed under 
oath; 
 
e. For a rent increase, organized documentation clearly showing the rent increase 
justification and detailing the calculations to which the documentation pertains. For an 
exemption, organized documentation showing your right to the exemption. 
 
f. For all owner responses, the Owner must provide proof of service by first class mail or 
in person of the response and any supporting documents on the tenants of all units 
affected by the petition. (Note that if the supporting documents exceed 25 pages, the 
Owner is not required to serve the supporting documents on the affected tenants provided 
that the owner petition was served as required and the petition or attachment indicates 

 
1 See O.M.C. § 8.22.090 (B). 
2 See O.M.C. § 8.22.500. 
3 This can be done initially by affirming that all notices have been sent but may require additional evidence if the 
statement is contested. 

000167



 

2 | P a g e  
 

that the additional documents are or will be available at the RAP and that the Owner will 
provide copies of the supporting documents to the tenant upon written request within 10 
days.)  

 
The response that you attempted to file was incomplete. The chart below indicates what is 
missing from your filing: 
 

Name of Document Needed 
Proof of service of the response (and attachments where 
required) by first class mail or in person on all tenants in 
units affected by the response 

 
      X 

Proof of payment of Business License Tax.       X 

Proof of payment of the RAP Fee.       X 

Agreement to participate in Mediation as requested by 
the Petitioner. 

      X 

 
You have 30 days from the date of the mailing of this letter to provide a completed response. If 
you do not do so, your response will be dismissed. Since your response is incomplete, the RAP 
cannot accept the response, and any scheduled hearing will be postponed, if scheduled to occur 
in less than 30 days.  

If you have any questions or concerns, consult RAP by email or phone. The email address is 
hearingsunit@oakalndca.gov, and the telephone number is 510-238-3721. 

 

 

Dated:  January 4, 2023  City of Oakland 
  Rent Adjustment Program 
   

 

 

 

000168



PROOF OF SERVICE 

Case Number: T22-0202 

Case Name: Joseph v. Jones 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 

Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 

California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 

California 94612.   

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 

Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 

Plaza, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 

Notice of Incomplete Owner Response 

Manager 

Nicholas Drobocky, Woodminster Real Estate Inc 

5021 Woodminster Lane 

Oakland, CA 94602 

Owner 

Robert Duncan Jones 

2922 Thorne Creek Ln 

Houston, TX 77073 

Tenant 

Michael Joseph 

567 Oakland Avenue 304 

Oakland, CA 94611 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing 

correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 

receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 

Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 

business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 

and correct. Executed on January 10, 2023 in Oakland, California. 

______________________________ 

Brittni Lothlen 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000169



000170



000171



CITY OF OAKLAND  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION 

 
CASE NUMBER    T22-0202 
 
CASE NAME:    Joseph v. Jones 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESS:  567 Oakland Street, Unit 304 
       Oakland, CA 
 
PARTIES:     Michael Joseph, Tenant 
 

 
SUMMARY OF DECISION 

 
The Tenant’s Petition is granted. 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
Reason for Administrative decision: An Administrative Decision is issued 
without a hearing. The purpose of a hearing is to allow the parties to present 
testimony and other evidence to allow the resolution of disputes of material fact. 
However, in this case, sufficient uncontested facts have been presented to issue a 
decision without a hearing, and no material facts are disputed. Therefore, an 
administrative decision, without a hearing, is being issued.  
 

BACKGROUND 
 
On November 10, 2022, the Tenant filed the petition herein. The petition contests a 
rent increase alleged from $2,050.00 to $2,234.50, effective December 1, 2022, on 
the following grounds that the rent increase exceeds the legally allowable amount. 
The petition, completed under penalty of perjury, acknowledges receipt of the RAP 
Notice1 on April 17, 2021, and with the Notice of Rent Increase challenged 

 
1 Notice to Tenants of the Residential Rent Adjustment Program. 

000172



2 | P a g e  
 

A Notice of Incomplete Owner Response was sent to the Respondent on January 
10, 2023.2 The Respondent was given 35 days to file the necessary documents and 
a proof of service of their petition. To date, no new documents were filed, no proof 
of service was filed, and the response was not completed.  Therefore, the response 
cannot be considered filed and complete. Accordingly, any documentation 
submitted with the response is inadmissible.3  
 

RATIONALE FOR ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION 
 
Rent Increase 
 
Oakland City Council Ordinance 13589 CMS, adopted on March 27, 2020, states 
as follows at Section 4:  
 

Rent Increase Moratorium.  
For rental units regulated by Oakland Municipal Code 
8.22.010 et seq, any notice of rent increase in excess of the 
CPI Rent Adjustment, as defined in Oakland Municipal 
Code Section 8.22.020, shall be void and unenforceable if 
the notice is served or has an effective date during the Local 
Emergency, unless required to provide a fair return. Any 
notice of rent increase served during the Local Emergency 
shall include the following statement in bold underlined 12-
point font: “During the Local Emergency declared by 
the City of Oakland in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic, your rent may not be increased in excess of 
the CPI Rent Adjustment (3-5% until June 30, 2020), 
unless required for the landlord to obtain a fair return. 
You may contact the Rent Adjustment Program at 
(510.) 238—37.21 for additional information and 
referrals.” 

 
When the Rent Increase Moratorium was enacted, the CPI Rent Adjustment was 3-
5%. The Moratorium clearly states that this CPI is in effect “until June 30, 2020.” 
As of July 1, 2022, the CPI Rent Adjustment is 3%. The Local Emergency remains 
in the City of Oakland. Therefore, increasing the Tenant’s base rent above 3%, or 
$76.50, violates the Rent Increase Moratorium. The Owner’s 2022 Notice of Rent 
Increase was issued for $184.50. Although the amount of the rent increase is less 
than the maximum allowed,  

 
2 O.M.C. Section 8.22.090(B) 
3 O.M.C. Section 8.22.070(C). Santiago v. Vega, Case 

000173



3 | P a g e  
 

When the Rent Increase Moratorium (Moratorium) was enacted, the CPI Rent 
Adjustment was 3-5%. The Moratorium clearly states that this CPI is “until June 
30, 2020.” As of July 1, 2022, the CPI Rent Adjustment is 3%. The Local 
Emergency remains in the City of Oakland. Therefore, increasing the Tenant’s 
base rent above 3%, or $61.50, violates the Moratorium.  Therefore, the Owner’s 
Notice of Rent Increase of $184.50 is invalid.  Additionally, it would appear that 
the Notice of Rent Increase did not include the required statement in bold, 
underlined 12-point font, and is likewise on this basis invalid as well.   
 

ORDER 

 
1. Petition T22-0202 is granted. 
 
2. The legal rent for the subject unit remains $2,050.00. 
 
Right to Appeal:  This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment 
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly 
completed appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. 
The appeal must be received within seventeen (17) calendar days of electronic 
service or twenty (20) days if served by first-class mail. If the last day to file is a 
weekend or holiday, the appeal may be filed on the next business day. The date and 
service method are shown on the attached Proof of Service.   
 

      
      

Dated:  February 24, 2023  Élan Consuella Lambert 
  Hearing Officer 
  Rent Adjustment Program 

 

 

000174



PROOF OF SERVICE 

Case Number: T22-0202 

Case Name: Joseph v. Jones 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 

Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 

California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 

California 94612.   

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 

Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 

Plaza, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 

Administrative Decision 

 

Manager 

Nicholas Drobocky, Woodminster Real Estate Inc 

5021 Woodminster Lane 

Oakland, CA 94602 

Owner 

Robert Duncan Jones 

2922 Thorne Creek Ln 

Houston, TX 77073 

Tenant 

Michael Joseph 

567 Oakland Avenue 304 

Oakland, CA 94611 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing 

correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 

receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 

Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 

business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 

and correct. Executed on February 28, 2022 in Oakland, California. 

______________________________ 

Brittni Lothlen 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000175



Revised January 10, 2022 

APPEAL 
Appellant’s Name 

☐ Owner    ☐ Tenant

Property Address (Include Unit Number) 

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number 

Name of Representative (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For 
notices) 

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must 
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed 
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.  

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) ☐ The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations, or prior
decisions of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section,
Regulation or prior Board decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.)

b) ☐ The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your
explanation, you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is
inconsistent.)

c) ☐ The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your
explanation, you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be
decided in your favor.)

d) ☐ The decision violates federal, state, or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a
detailed statement as to what law is violated.)

e) ☐ The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must
explain why the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721
CA Relay Service 711
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

Robert Jones X

567 Oakland Ave., #304, Oakland CA 94611

Robert Jones
2922 Thorne Creek Ln.
Houston, TX 77073

T22-0202
Date of Decision appealed 

2/24/2023 (served via US Mail on 2/28/2023)

Kimberly Roehn, Attorney;   
Nicholas Brobocky, Manager, Woodminster Real Estate Inc. 

Kimberly Roehn
Roehn Law Offices LLP
1990 N. California Blvd.,#800
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Nicholas Brobocky
Woodminster Real Estate Inc.
5021 Woodminster Ln.
Oakland, CA 94602

X

X

X

DocuSign Envelope ID: 26A4E0B8-CF0B-4AA4-854D-E0EDD0BFE1B0

000176



Revised January 10, 2022 

f) ☐ I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s
claim. (In your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your
claims and what evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every
case. Staff may issue a decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not
in dispute.)

g) ☐ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on the Owner’s investment. (You may appeal on
this ground only when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically
state why you have been denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h) ☐ Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

• You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties, or your appeal may be dismissed. ●
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on            , 20        , 
I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first-class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
addressed to each opposing party as follows:

Name 

Address 

City, State Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State Zip 

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE 

X

Michael Joseph

567 Oakland Ave., #304

Oakland, CA 94611

Supporting documents (in addition to this form) must not exceed 25 pages, and must be received by 
the Rent Adjustment Program, along with a proof of service on the opposing party, within 15 days of 
the filing of this document. Only the first 25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the 
Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A) (4) . Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of 
pages attached: _____.   

March 20                 23

Appeal Attachment (6 pgs); Exhibits (26 pgs).

DocuSign Envelope ID: 26A4E0B8-CF0B-4AA4-854D-E0EDD0BFE1B0

3/20/2023

000177



CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM - APPEAL   
Case: L22-0202 (Jones v. Joseph)  
--- 
 

 
OWNER APPEAL (CASE NO. L22-0202) 

 - Page 1 of 6 -  

ATTACHMENT - OWNER APPEAL 
 
Owner/Appellant Robert Jones (hereinafter “the owner”) files the following Appeal to the 
Administrative Decision dated February 24, 2023, wherein the Tenant Petition contesting the rent 
increase was granted without hearing and without consideration of the properly filed Owner 
Response, including supporting evidence.  
 
The owner respectfully submits that the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) lacks jurisdiction over 
the condominium unit at issue, which is exempt from the Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 
Ordinance (Article 1) (hereinafter “RAP Ordinance”), and the Administrative Decision must be 
reversed in full. 
 

I. PROCEDURAL FACTS 
 

The owner purchased the condominium at 567 Oakland Ave., #304, in Oakland on March 1, 1979. 
Tenant/Appellee Michael Joseph (hereinafter “the tenant”) began residing in the condominium on 
on May 1, 2021. 
 
On October 26, 2022, the owner served the tenant with a notice stating that effective December 1, 
2022, the monthly rent would increase from $2,050 to $2,234.50, or 9%.  
 
The tenant contested the increase by filing a Tenant Petition (petition no. 16261) with the RAP on 
November 10, 2022; the Petition identified the unit as a condominium. (See Exhibit 1.1) The 
owner then filed an Owner Response on December 7, 2022, both electronically and via US Mail, 
which stated that the condominium is exempt from the rent control ordinance; the owner included 
12 pages of documentary evidence with the response. The RAP confirmed receipt of the owner’s 
electronic filings. (See Exhibit 2.) 
 
On December 12, 2022, the RAP sent the tenant a Notice of Incomplete Tenant Petition citing 
failure to file a proof of service with his petition. In response to this notice, the tenant filed a new 
petition on December 24, 2022 (petition no. 16267), which was essentially identical to the original 
petition but included a proof of service. The owner did not submit a new, identical response given 
that these filings were clearly intended to be a continuation of the same case. To the owner’s 
knowledge, only one case number (T22-0202) was generated despite the filing of two petitions. 
  
On January 10, 2022, the RAP sent the owner a Notice of Incomplete Owner Response, which 
failed to mention any of the owner’s filed materials and requested documentation that had already 
been filed. (See Exhibit 3.) 
 
RAP Hearing Officer Elan Lambert issued an Administrative Decision dated February 24, 2022 
granting the tenant’s petition without hearing. The decision noted the owner had not filed any new 
document or complete response, but also does not mention that the owner filed any response or 
what was “incomplete.” Officer Lambert cited only one basis for invalidating the rent increase: 

 
1 Only one page of relevance is included in an attempt to adhere to the Appeal Board’s requested page limitation. 
Additional documentation is available upon request.  

000178



CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM - APPEAL   
Case: L22-0202 (Jones v. Joseph)  
--- 
 

 
OWNER APPEAL (CASE NO. L22-0202) 

 - Page 2 of 6 -  

Oakland City Council Ordinance 13589, the emergency rent increase moratorium limiting 
increases to 3%. (See Exhibit 4.) 
 
The owner appeals on the grounds that the condominium is not a “covered unit” under the RAP 
Ordinance and the city lacks jurisdiction over the unit or rent increase at issue.  
 

II. STANDARD OF APPEAL 
 

The owner appeals the Administrative Decision on the following grounds: 
 

1. The decision violates federal, state, or local law; 
2. The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, the Regulations, or prior 
decisions of the Board; 
3. The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers;  
4. The owner was denied a sufficient opportunity to present his claim or respond to the 

petitioner’s claim.  
 

Because the basis of appeal is legal error (i.e. that the Hearing Officer misinterpreted and/or 
misapplied a law or precedent), the applicable standard of review is de novo. (People v. Cromer 
(2001) 24 Cal.4th 889; Pineda v. Williams-Sonoma Stores, Inc. (2011) 51 Cal.4th 524.) The 
Appeal Board therefore does not defer to the Hearing Officer’s judgment, and instead reviews the 
issues independently.  
 

III. DISCUSSION 
 

The sole issue is whether the hearing officer erroneously exercised jurisdiction over a 
condominium that is exempt from Oakland’s RAP Ordinance. 
 

a. The decision violates federal, state, or local law. 
 
The threshold issue in any case—whether at the RAP or other court—is whether the tribunal has 
authority to decide the matter before it. Here, Officer Lambert did not address this threshold issue.  
 
Per the Oakland Municipal Code (“OMC”) section 8.22.020, Oakland’s rent control provisions 
apply only to “covered units”, which are defined as:  

"Covered Unit" means any dwelling unit, including joint living and work quarters, 
and all housing services located in Oakland and used or occupied in consideration 
of payment of rent with the exception of those units designated in Section 8.22.030 
A. as exempt. "Covered Unit" includes a vehicular residential facility, as defined 
in Oakland Planning Code Section 17.10.700, rented or offered for rent for living 
or dwelling purposes, whether rent is paid for the recreational vehicle and the lot 
upon which it is located, or rent is paid for the lot alone. (OMC § 8.22.020, 
emphasis added.) 

 

000179



CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM - APPEAL   
Case: L22-0202 (Jones v. Joseph)  
--- 
 

 
OWNER APPEAL (CASE NO. L22-0202) 

 - Page 3 of 6 -  

The relevant exemption that applies to the property here is contained in OMC section 
8.22.030(A)(7):  

A.  Types of Dwelling Units Exempt. The following dwelling units are not covered 
units for purposes of this Chapter, Article I only (the Just Cause for Eviction 
Ordinance (Chapter 8.22, Article II) and the Ellis Act Ordinance (Chapter 8.22, 
Article II)) have different exemptions): 

7.  Dwelling units exempt pursuant to Costa-Hawkins (California Civil Code 
§ 1954.52). 

California Civil Code section 1954.52 states: 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an owner of residential real 
property may establish the initial and all subsequent rental rates for a dwelling 
or a unit about which any of the following is true: 

(3) (A) It is alienable separate from the title to any other dwelling unit or is a 
subdivided interest in a subdivision, as specified in subdivision (b), (d), or (f) 
of Section 11004.5 of the Business and Professions Code. 2 

Here, the property is a condominium (Assessor’s Parcel No. 10-810-54) that was purchased as a 
single unit by the owner in 1979. It “is alienable separate from the title to any other dwelling unit” 
under Costa-Hawkins, and is therefore exempt from Oakland’s RAP Ordinance. 

The Owner Response (submitted online and via US Mail on December 7, 2022) clearly states the 
unit is an exempt property in several places and includes ample documentation supporting that 
fact. Even the Tenant Petition identifies the unit as a condominium. (See Exhibits 1, 2.) 

In addition, all of the following are public records available to (if not created and maintained by) 
the City of Oakland which clearly identify the property as a condominium:  

- Owner’s Grant Deed, recorded 3/1/1979 (also filed with Owner Response on 12/7/2022); 
- Alameda County Assessor’s Parcel Map (available at: 

https://assessormaps.acgov.org/BK010/0100815.00.PDF) 
- Alameda County Assessor’s Parcel Details (available at: 

https://propinfo.acgov.org/?PRINT_PARCEL=10-815-24 ) 
- The current Alameda County Secured Property Tax Bill for the subject property 

(available at: https://www.acgov.org/ptax_pub_app/RealSearch.do) 

There is no circumstance under which the Tenant Petition, as filed, was eligible to be granted by 
Administrative Decision. Even if Officer Lambert had somehow not seen the Owner’s Response 
identifying the exemption (which, again, was confirmed received by the RAP), the Tenant Petition 
itself identifies the property as condominium, and thus the Petition should have never been granted 
via Administrative Decision. 
  
// 

 
2 Civil Code § 1952.54(a)(3)(B) identifies certain exceptions, none of which apply to this property or tenancy.  

000180



CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM - APPEAL   
Case: L22-0202 (Jones v. Joseph)  
--- 
 

 
OWNER APPEAL (CASE NO. L22-0202) 

 - Page 4 of 6 -  

RAP personnel have a duty to exercise basic due diligence in order to evaluate the threshold 
issue of jurisdiction to confirm they are acting within the bounds of the of the authority 
granted by the Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland Municipal Code. This consideration is 
fundamental to the due process rights of those that appear before the RAP. 
 
The law is clear that this unit is exempt from Oakland’s RAP Ordinance, both under local and state 
law. As such, Officer Lambert had no authority to strike down the increase; the decision is invalid 
and void for lack of jurisdiction and must be reversed in its entirety. 
  

b. The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, the Regulations, and 
prior decisions of the Board, as well as decisions of other hearing officers. 

 
For the reasons stated above, the decision in this case is improper under OMC section 8.22.020 et. 
seq. The subject property is not a “covered unit” and is exempt from the rent regulations under 
section 8.22.030(A)(7). 
 
This Board has a long history of upholding this well-settled law and exemption. See, for example, 
the case of Hill v. Brown (T02-0190), wherein the Board held that a separately alienable single-
family dwelling or condominium is exempt from Ordinance pursuant to Costa-Hawkins.  
 
This decision is also inconsistent with the multitude of other cases where RAP hearing officers 
properly acknowledged exempted condominium units (e.g., L19-0060, L19-0210-L19-0252). 
 

c. The owner was denied a sufficient opportunity to present his claim or respond 
to the Petitioner’s claim. 

 
Procedural due process is guaranteed in administrative hearings, and requires a fair hearing before 
an impartial, unbiased decisionmaker. (Bracy v. Gramley (1997) 520 U.S. 899, 904-905; Nightlife 
Partners, Ltd. v. City of Beverly Hills (2003) 108 Cal.App.4th, 81, 90.)   
 
The RAP office sets out policies and procedures for parties to follow that, seemingly, are in place 
to ensure due process in its proceedings. However, a pattern has emerged wherein procedures and 
policies are not uniformly applied across hearing officers, and as a result the process and outcomes 
are inconsistent and often biased. 
 
This case is one of many which demonstrate a pattern of Officer Lambert’s bias in favor of tenants.  
 
Here, the tenant identified the unit as a condominium in the Petition. Then, the owner properly and 
timely filed a complete Owner Response, including supporting evidence and documentation; the 
owner’s documents were filed both electronically and via US Mail to ensure receipt and properly 
served on all parties. The Proof of Service was also filed.  
 
In summary, all the substantive and procedural requirements were met for Officer Lambert to 
appropriately dismiss the Tenant Petition. (See OMC § 8.22.090, 8.22.110). Yet, Officer Lambert 
claimed to have never received any owner documents. This is demonstrably false; the RAP itself 
confirmed receipt of the owner documents. (See Exhibit 2, confirmation at PDF page 22.)  
 

000181



CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM - APPEAL   
Case: L22-0202 (Jones v. Joseph)  
--- 
 

 
OWNER APPEAL (CASE NO. L22-0202) 

 - Page 5 of 6 -  

Based on this false “deficiency”, an Administrative Decision was improperly issued without 
consideration of filed evidence or an opportunity to be heard, thereby denying the owner’s 
rights under Oakland and California Law.  
 
This is far from the first time Officer Lambert has claimed not to have access to owner-filed 
documents, has demanded documentation irrelevant to the claims, issued improper deficiency 
notices, or granted tenant petitions in full via Administrative Decision based on incorrect 
allegations of owner deficiencies. (Compare Exhibits 2 & 3.) In fact, as an attorney representing 
owners in RAP cases for several years, I have never had a case where Officer Lambert did not 
issue the owner a deficiency notice claiming filed documents were missing, nor have I ever even 
had a case proceed to a hearing on the record. 
 
Officer Lambert has exhibited a pattern of conduct wherein owners and tenants are held to different 
standards. She enforces an elevated standard of proof against owners that is over and above what 
is required by the OMC, California law, or precedent, making it nearly impossible for an owner to 
prevail before her. This is the definition of bias and denial of due process.  
 
Examples of these issues are detailed in a previously confidential Request for Reassignment 
presented to the RAP, which served as the basis for prior Senior Hearing Officer Barbara Kong-
Brown to grant several reassignment requests on the basis of bias (cases L20-0057, L20-0071, 
L21-0039). (See Exhibit 5.3) 
 
Since that time, Officer Lambert has continued to demonstrate a lack of neutrality, but requests for 
reassignment have been denied by Officer Kong-Brown’s successor, Officer Marguerita Fa-Kaji. 
After being denied reassignment, my owner-clients have suffered the same pattern of conduct.4,5. 
 
Officer Lambert’s lack of neutrality and pattern of bias against owners have also been raised before 
the Appeal Board in several cases (e.g. L19-007, L19-270, L19-0272, L19-0325). 
 
In summary, the owner has been denied a hearing and a fair consideration of the evidence in this 
case, which is part of a larger pattern of inappropriate conduct that the owner respectfully urges 
this Board to consider and address.  
 
// 

 
3 Exhibits to the letter dated 12/10/2020 are intentionally omitted for brevity, but available upon request.  
 
4 For example, in L21-0063, the owners were issued a deficiency notice on 2/7/2022--less than 48 hours before the 
2/9/2022 hearing--stating the owner had not filed “documentation showing the justification and detailing the 
calculations”, which was inaccurate. The hearing was continued 1.5 months and the stated “deficiency” was 
addressed. Yet at the rescheduled hearing, Ofc. Lambert refused to go on the record and issued a new deficiency 
notice demanding the owner provide proof of service of the RAP notice, despite no tenant contesting receipt of the 
Notice nor was any tenant contesting the rent increase. Ofc. Lambert’s demand was directly contrary to OMC § 
8.22.060 (B), which states that sufficient evidence of compliance with the RAP Notice “can be a statement of 
compliance given under oath.” Ultimately, the case was withdrawn, re-filed, and the owner petition granted by a 
different hearing officer.  
 
5 A further example, in L22-0017, Ofc. Lambert issued a deficiency notice stating that the owner failed to produce 
adequate evidence that they served the RAP Notice despite the owner’s verified attestation in the petition and the 
absence of any tenant challenge (which is adequate under OMC § 8.22.060 (B) as discussed above in FN 4).  

000182



CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM - APPEAL   
Case: L22-0202 (Jones v. Joseph)  
--- 
 

 
OWNER APPEAL (CASE NO. L22-0202) 

 - Page 6 of 6 -  

IV. CONCLUSION 
 
The subject property, a condominium, is exempt from the restrictions defined in Oakland’s RAP 
Ordinance. The Hearing Officer in this case disregarded available evidence and filings and, as a 
result, incorrectly granted the Tenant/Appellee’s petition without authority to do so. Therefore, the 
owner respectfully requests the decision be reversed and the rent increase reinstated effective the 
date of the original notice: December 1, 2022. The owner further requests that a Certificate of 
Exemption be issued.  
 
Dated: March 20, 2023   Respectfully submitted, 
          
      

__________________________________ 
       

Kimberly Roehn 
      Attorney for Owner/Appellant 

000183



001

1

000184

kim
Oval



Case Petition: 16261
Property Address 567 OAKLAND AV, 304

Parties

Party Name Address Mailing Address
Tenant Michael Joseph 567 Oakland Avenue

304Oakland, CA 94611

(909) 907-4559

michael@unce.us

Manager Nicholas Drobocky 5021 Woodminster Lane
Oakland, CA 94602

5021 Woodminster Lane
Oakland, California
94602

Woodminster Real Estate
Inc

(510) 336-0202

Owner Robert Duncan Jones 2922 Thorne Creek Ln
Houston, TX 77073

2922 Thorne Creek Ln
Houston, Texas 77073

Business Information

Date of which you aquired the building 2-6-1979

Total Number of Units 1

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? No

Type of Unit Condominium

Is the contested increase a capital improvements increase? No

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

Owner Response

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed: 12-08-2022

002

2

000185



Business License 00059896

Have you paid your business license? Yes

Have you paid the Rent Adjustment Program Service Fee ($101 per
unit)?

Yes

Rent History

The tenant moved into the rental unit on 5-1-2021

Initial monthly rent 2050

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form
entitled Notice to Tenants of Residential Rent Adjustment Program
(“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?

Yes

On what date was the notice first given? 4-17-2021

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

Owner Response

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed: 12-08-2022

003000186



Are you claiming an Exemption? Yes

The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the
Costa Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et
seq.). If claiming exemption under Costa-Hawkins, please answer the
following questions:

Yes

1. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil
Code Section 1946)?

No

2. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent
increase (Civil Code Section 827)?

No

3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause? No

4. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or
safety codes in the unit or building?

No

5. Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be
sold separately?

Yes

6. Did the current tenant(s) have roommates when they moved in? No

7a. Type of unit you rent Condominium

7b. Did you purchase the unit? Yes

8. Did you purchase the entire building? No

9. From whom did you purchase it: Eugene S.
and Mattie
S. Lewis

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

Owner Response

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed: 12-08-2022

004000187



The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a
governmental unit, agency or authority other than the City of Oakland
Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

No

The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was
issued for it on or after January 1, 1983.

No

On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident
of a motel, hotel, or boarding house for less than 30 days.

No

The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50%
or more of the average basic cost of new construction.

No

The unit is an accommodation in a hospital, convent, monastery,
extended care facility, convalescent home, non-profit home for aged,
or dormitory owned and operated by an educational institution.

No

The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner
occupies one of the units continuously as his or her principal residence
and has done so for at least one year.

No

Owner Responses on Petition Grounds

Questions Owner Response

Tenant did not receive proper notice, was not properly
served, and/or was not provided with the required RAP
form with rent increase(s)

Tenant was served by mail on October
26, 2022 with the 30-Day Notice of
Change of Monthly Rent and the

Notice to Tenants of the Residential
Rent Adjustment Program.  Proof of

Service can be provided.

A government agency has cited the unit for serious
health, safety, fire, or building code violations. No Response Submitted

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

Owner Response

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed: 12-08-2022

005000188



The owner is providing tenant(s) with fewer housing
services and/or charging for services originally paid for
by the owner.

No Response Submitted

Tenant(s) is/are being unlawfully charged for utilities. No Response Submitted

Rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period
for capital improvements. No Response Submitted

Tenant is contesting exemption based on fraud or
mistake.

The property at 567 Oakland Ave.,
Unit 304 is a condominium exempt

from rent increase limitations.

Tenant’s initial rent amount was unlawful because owner
was not permitted to set initial rent without limitation
(O.M.C. § 8.22.080C).

No Response Submitted

---------------END OF RESPONSE---------------

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

Owner Response

City of Oakland Rent Adjust Program
Date Printed: 12-08-2022

006000189



007000190



Woodminster Real Estate Co., Inc.

 Bill #20010 - PAID

Vendor City of Oakland Business Tax Ref No.

Bill Date 02/12/2022 Due Date 02/12/2022

Terms NET 30 Description
Oakland Business Taxes and
license fee 2022, and RAP
fees  

Last Modified By chinkle - 02/12/2022 3:51 PM Attached to WO #21010 

Bill Splits
Portfolio/Building Unit Account Comments Amount

JONES/ 567OAKLND304 61000 - Business
Licenses and ...

Business License
fee, taxes 2022 $435.45

Total $435.45

Payments
Date Paid From Payment Method Amount
02/12/2022 1015 - New Trust Account Check (15914) $435.45

008000191



009000192



010000193



Wednesday, October 20, 2021

No Images Available

LOCATION
Property Address 567 Oakland Ave

Oakland, CA 94611-5094

Subdivision

Carrier Route C038

County Alameda County, CA

GENERAL PARCEL INFORMATION
APN/Tax ID 10-815-54

Alt. APN 010 -0815-054-00

Account Number

Tax Area 17-001

2010 Census Trct/Blk 4040/1

Assessor Roll Year 2021

PROPERTY SUMMARY
Property Type Residential

Land Use Condominium Unit Residential

Improvement Type Condominium Unit Residential

Square Feet 745

# of Buildings 1

CURRENT OWNER
Name Jones Robert D Jr

Mailing Address 2922 Thorne Creek Ln
Houston, TX 77073-3424

Owner Occupied No

SCHOOL INFORMATION
These are the closest schools to the property

Piedmont Avenue Elementary School 0.6 mi

Elementary: K to 5 Distance

Westlake Middle School 0.6 mi

Middle: 6 to 8 Distance

Oakland Technical High School 0.8 mi

High: 9 to 12 Distance

SALES HISTORY THROUGH 10/04/2021
Date Date RecordedAmount Buyer/Owners Seller Instrument No. Parcels Book/Page

Or
Document#

3/1/1979 3/1/1979 Jones Robert D Jr 79038467

TAX ASSESSMENT

Tax Assessment 2021  Change (%)  2020  Change (%)  2019

Assessed Land $59,084.00  $606.00 (1.0%)  $58,478.00  $1,146.00 (2.0%)  $57,332.00

COPYRIGHT © 2021 COURTHOUSE RETRIEVAL SYSTEM, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
Information Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed.

011000194



Assessed Improvements $41,441.00  $425.00 (1.0%)  $41,016.00  $804.00 (2.0%)  $40,212.00

Total Assessment $100,525.00  $1,031.00 (1.0%)  $99,494.00  $1,950.00 (2.0%)  $97,544.00

Exempt Reason

% Improved 41%

TAXES
Tax Year City Taxes County Taxes Total Taxes

2020 $2,721.30

2019 $2,525.06

2018 $2,475.94

2017 $2,345.92

2016 $2,178.78

2015 $2,163.20

2014 $2,078.76

2013 $2,053.48

MORTGAGE HISTORY
No mortgages were found for this parcel.

FORECLOSURE HISTORY
No foreclosures were found for this parcel.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: BUILDING
Building # 1

Type Condominium Unit
Residential

Condition Units

Year Built 1970 Effective Year Stories

BRs 1 Baths 1  F  H Rooms

Total Sq. Ft. 745

Building Square Feet (Living Space) Building Square Feet (Other)

- CONSTRUCTION

Quality B Roof Framing

Shape Roof Cover Deck

Partitions Cabinet Millwork

Common Wall Floor Finish

Foundation Interior Finish

Floor System Air Conditioning

Exterior Wall Heat Type

Structural Framing Bathroom Tile

Fireplace Plumbing Fixtures

- OTHER

Occupancy Building Data Source

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: EXTRA FEATURES
No extra features were found for this parcel.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: LOT
Land Use Condominium Unit Residential Lot Dimensions

Block/Lot Lot Square Feet 22,133

COPYRIGHT © 2021 COURTHOUSE RETRIEVAL SYSTEM, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
Information Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed.

Property Report for 567 OAKLAND AVE, cont.

012000195



Latitude/Longitude 37.820537°/-122.251891° Acreage 0.51

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: UTILITIES/AREA
Gas Source Road Type

Electric Source Topography

Water Source District Trend

Sewer Source School District

Zoning Code

Owner Type

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Subdivision Plat Book/Page

Block/Lot Tax Area 17-001

Description

FEMA FLOOD ZONES

Zone Code Flood Risk BFE Description FIRM Panel ID
FIRM Panel Eff.
Date

X Minimal Area of minimal flood hazard, usually depicted on FIRMs as
above the 500-year flood level.

065048-06001C0059G 08/03/2009

COPYRIGHT © 2021 COURTHOUSE RETRIEVAL SYSTEM, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
Information Deemed Reliable But Not Guaranteed.

Property Report for 567 OAKLAND AVE, cont.

013000196



1

From:  City of Oakland - Applications  <oakapps@oaklandca.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, December 7, 2022 5:50 PM
To: services@woodminsterrealty.com
Subject: Owner Response - Rent Adjust Program

CITY OF OAKLAND 
 RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 

250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612 

(510) 238-3721

Owner Response  Submission Confirmation 

Thank you for submitting your response to case number . 

Your response number is 1252 

Before your response will be processed, you must upload a proof of service 
document declaring that you have mailed (or personally delivered) a copy of your 
owner response, and any documents you uploaded in support of your response and a 
copy of the proof of service form to the tenant and/or tenant’s designated 
representative. 

You may have already received written confirmation with an assigned case 
number(which is different than the electronic petition number), the name of your 
analyst and hearing date in the mail. If not, you will receive these documents shortly. 
You may submit any additional documentation until 7 days before the hearing either 
through the portal or by mail (if by mail, the documents must be received at the RAP 
by the due date). You may review the other party's submitted documents by 
appointment. Please contact our office to schedule an appointment for File Review. 

Pay close attention your email and your mail for information regarding any next steps. 

If you have any questions please contact RAP staff at Phone: (510) 238-3721. 

014000197



015000198



016000199



017

3

000200



018000201



019000202



020

4

000203



021000204



022000205



023000206



  1990 N. California Blvd., Suite 800         Tel. 925-464-2202 
  Walnut Creek, CA 94596  info@roehnlaw.com

Page 1 of 3 

CONFIDENTIAL Via Email 

To: Barbara Kong-Brown (BKong-Brown@oaklandca.gov) 
CC: Chanee Franklin Minor (CFranklinMinor@oaklandca.gov) 

From: Kimberly Roehn, Owner Representative (kim@roehnlaw.com) 

Date: December 10, 2020

Re: Request for Reassignment of Hearing Officer in Cases: 
L20-0057 – Sweet Rentality LLC v. Tenant,  
L20-0071 – Hertzel Enterprises LLC v. Tenants. 

--- 
Dear Ms. Kong-Brown, 

I am writing to you confidentially to request that the above-titled cases be reassigned on 
the grounds that I do not believe my clients will receive a fair or unbiased hearing with 
the current hearing officer, Elan Lambert, presiding.  

Currently, case no. L20-0057 (Sweet Rentality LLC v. Tenant) is set for hearing on 
January 20, 2021. Case no. L20-0071 (Hertzel Enterprises LLC v. Tenants) is not yet set. 

The context of this request is as follows: I am an attorney and have been representing 
owners in Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) matters for the past several years. This is 
the first such request I have made; the issues and mishandling I have witnessed are 
exclusive to this particular hearing officer. 

The first case I had assigned to Hearing Officer Lambert (“H.O. Lambert”) was a 
straight-forward petition for certificate of exemption (L19-0060 et. al.). The case began 
in January 2019 and was just submitted at hearing yesterday—a hearing which occurred 
only after the case was reassigned to a new hearing officer, who reversed H.O. Lambert’s 
prior incorrect orders and promptly set the matter to be heard. The handling of this case 
under H.O. Lambert illustrates the basis for my instant request to re-assign other cases.  

In summary, over the past nearly two years of this case, H.O. Lambert issued 
unsolicited pre-hearing "Orders" that were plainly contrary to law and facts, gave 
contradictory and inconsistent instructions regarding petition procedures and 
deficiencies, demanded unnecessary information, repeatedly canceled and re-set 
hearings without notice (pre-COVID), and ultimately refused to set the matter despite 
repeated requests.  

The petition was filed on 1/24/2019 and sought certificates of exemption for each unit in 
a 45-unit building (there is one certificate of occupancy, each has a separate APN). 
Initially I received instructions to file one petition for all units.  

The petition was filed and set for hearing on 9/25/2019; however, when my client and I 
appeared for the hearing, H.O. Lambert turned us away based on her incorrect 
insistence that a deficiency existed related to RAP fees. No deficiency notice had been 

024

5

000207



  1990 N. California Blvd., Suite 800         Tel. 925-464-2202 
  Walnut Creek, CA 94596  info@roehnlaw.com

Page 2 of 3 

issued on these grounds. Yet, at the outset, H.O. Lambert insisted a deficiency existed 
and demanded proof of payment of RAP fees; however, the Business Tax Office had 
already, years prior, determined my clients were exempt from paying RAP fees for this 
building based on the date of the certificate of occupancy. This is standard operating 
procedure at Business Tax - they do not charge RAP fees to “new construction” based on 
the code, and staff notes the exemption in their system (which was done here). Thus, my 
clients had not been assessed the fees and had a $0 balance. This has never been a 
controversial process until H.O. Lambert insisted that she, not the Business Tax Office, 
determines who owes RAP fees, and she would not proceed in any fashion.   

After this, I was met with roadblocks at literally every turn. For example, H.O. Lambert 
soon insisted we re-file 44 separate petitions in place of the original single petition, 
despite prior instruction to file a single petition (and subsequent commentary from RAP 
staff that we, indeed, should not have been made to file more than one petition). I was 
repeatedly told these 44 petitions would be consolidated and handled together given the 
same underlying facts and evidence (ie. same certificate of occupancy). I complied with 
each of H.O. Lambert’s requests despite my belief that they were not warranted or 
required by the code.  

On 3/3/2020, my client was issued a Deficiency Notice on the same RAP fees issue; I 
provided a detailed response on 3/13/2020 which was not acknowledged or provided a 
response.  

As of 9/8/2020, I had been in communication with H.O. Lambert, through analysts and 
directly, regarding:  

1. my request for confirmation that the 3/3/2020 Deficiency Notice was resolved
and no deficiencies remained;

2. consolidation of the 44 petitions, which was necessary and proper under the
applicable law, and which I had been repeatedly reassured would occur;

3. my request that the hearing be heard remotely given the pandemic and the
current public health directives.

On 9/8/2020, I was suddenly told: 
1. I had never requested consolidation. I disputed this and provided copies of ten

prior emails where I had, in fact, requested and discussed consolidation;
2. I was also told that my failure to provide email addresses of all tenants –

something never before requested or required (and something I have never do
out of concern for tenant privacy) was a bar to my request to set the hearing
remotely; and

3. My status request regarding the deficiency notice was, again, ignored entirely.

In the days following, several subsequent emails were exchanged in an attempt to clarify 
the situation. Although these emails were being sent by the analyst, my understanding 
was the instructions and content of the RAP’s responses were coming directly from 
H.O. Lambert. (Emails attached hereto as Exhibit A.) 

025000208



  1990 N. California Blvd., Suite 800         Tel. 925-464-2202 
  Walnut Creek, CA 94596  info@roehnlaw.com

Page 3 of 3 

On 9/22/2020, H.O. Lambert issued an unsolicited “Order” against my clients without 
providing them an opportunity to be heard on legal issues that required factual analysis 
and potentially testimony. The Order denied my request for consolidation with no stated 
basis, denied my request for remote hearing with no stated basis, and again failed to 
speak to the deficiency status. That order is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

The Order raised more questions than it answered. I was dumbfounded by the 
proceedings and requested clarification. (See Exhibit A.) 

Based on the entirety of this case, it became clear to me that H.O. Lambert’s conduct 
rose above simple mistake or inadvertence, and my clients were all but guaranteed to 
fail on account of H.O. Lambert’s bias.  

On its own initiative, on 10/21/2020 the RAP reassigned the case to a new hearing 
officer who immediately reversed H.O. Lambert’s orders in their entirety and 
set the consolidated case for remote hearing on 12/9/2020. (See Exhibit C.) The hearing 
was straight-forward and completed in under 20 minutes. 

Recently I have had two other cases assigned to H.O. Lambert. In one of these cases, 
L20-0057, I am already experiencing similar issues: months after filing the case, I 
realized I had not yet received a hearing date despite having dates set on several other 
petitions that were filed much later. I requested a status update but my email was 
ignored. Soon thereafter, I received a completely erroneous Deficiency Notice; it was 
immediately clear that the notice entirely ignored the petition’s contents and 
attachments. I immediately responded to the notice by re-sending the 33 pages of 
documents that were filed with the original petition and citing page numbers of the 
documents claimed to be missing.  

I still have not received any response to that email, nor to my subsequent request for 
confirmation that the deficiencies are resolved. As of today, a hearing date still has not 
been set. This is all too reminiscent of the treatment I came to expect of H.O. Lambert, 
which has cost my clients far more time and expense than would be necessary in an 
ordinary case that proceeds efficiently, reasonably, and fairly.  

In summary, I am confident H.O. Lambert cannot provide a fair, unbiased, or proper 
decision in any matter I am involved in based on her past conduct. Accordingly, I 
request my cases be reassigned to a new hearing officer. 

Sincerely, 

Kimberly Roehn 

Enclosures: Exhibits A-C 

026000209



1 
 

 

                                                        CITY OF OAKLAND   
                                 Rent Adjustment Program 

    

MEMORANDUM 

Date:     May 8, 2023 

To:     Members of the Housing, Rent Residential & Relocation     
                                  Board (HRRRB)     
 
From:    Braz Shabrell, Deputy City Attorney 

Re:     Appeal Summary in T19-0186, T19-0235 
    Didrickson v. Commonwealth Company 
                          
Appeal Hearing Date:       May 11, 2023 
 

Property Address:   2230 Lakeshore Avenue, No.7, Oakland, CA 

Appellant/Owner:   Commonwealth Company 
 
Respondents/Tenants: Glenda Didrickson 
    Carlos Didrickson  
                             

BACKGROUND 

 On February 5, 2019, tenants Glenda Didrickson and Carlos Didrickson filed a 

petition alleging the following decreased housing services: 

• Gas heater not working 11/18 to 1/31/19; 

• Patio not replaced (patio boards removed 2/17 with no legal permit); 

• Bedroom vent leaks rainwater when heavy rain; 

• Patio door handle broken; door frame separates from glass. 

 
On March 26, 2019, the tenants filed a second, supplemental petition alleging 

health and safety code violations in addition to the claim of decreased housing services, 

including:  

• No legal permit to remove patio deck; 

• No legal permit to install heating duct on roof above bedroom; 

• Water dripping from heater duct in bedroom; 

• Sliding patio door frame handle broken, frame shows a gap and separates 

from glass door;   



2 
 

• Electrical breaker trips when multiple appliances on;  

• No smoke/carbon dioxide detector in the living room. 

RULING ON THE CASE 

 On December 23, 2019, the Hearing Officer issued a Hearing Decision, denying 

the tenants’ petitions. At the start of the hearing, the Hearing Officer noted that the 

tenants’ petition listed various claims that had already been decided in prior hearing 

decisions, of which the Hearing Officer took official notice. The hearing was therefore 

limited in scope to only three items in the petitions which had not been addressed in 

prior cases: the gas heater, the smoke/carbon monoxide detectors, and the electric 

breaker.    

 The claims regarding the gas heater and smoke/carbon monoxide detectors were 

denied on the grounds that, according to the owner’s testimony, repairs had been made, 

and any delay in completing the repairs were due to difficulty coordinating with the 

tenants.  

The claim regarding the electric breaker was denied based on the owner’s 

testimony that the tenants were overloading the circuit breaker, that if the tenants 

stopped turning everything on at once the breaker would not short circuit, and that this 

issue did not affect the habitability of the unit.  

FIRST APPEAL (2020) 

 The tenants filed an appeal on several grounds, including that they were denied 

an opportunity to speak about unresolved issues and the building inspector’s report on 

the health and safety violations, and that the Hearing Officer failed to consider the 

Notice of Violation issued by the building inspector.  

 The appeal came before the Board on April 8, 2021. The Board remanded the 

case to the Hearing Officer to address only the following: (1) whether the issues in the 

March 19, 2019, Notice of Violation were resolved, (2) if the issues constituted reduction 

of housing service, and, if so, (3) the value, if any, of the reduction, with the parties 

allowed to submit new evidence on remand only with regard to the Notice of Violation 

and any subsequent City action regarding that Notice. 

REMAND DECISION (2021) 

 A remand hearing was held on October 4, 2021. Both parties submitted 

documentary evidence in advance of the hearing. The Hearing Officer issued a Remand 

Hearing Decision on January 25, 2022, granting the decreased housing service claims 

for the heating vent leak, the broken patio door handle, and issues with the electrical 

breaker. The findings were based on the fact that the 2019 Notice of Violation indicated 



3 
 

that these were ongoing issues, and subsequent re-inspection notices from February 

2020 and June 2021 indicate that the issues had not been abated. 

 The owner submitted evidence in advance of the hearing but did not attend.  

 

CURRENT APPEAL 

 The owner filed an appeal of the Remand Hearing Decision on February 2, 2022. 

On appeal, the owner argues that the restitution for the door handle and leaking vent 

are improper. Regarding the door handle, the city ordered that the deck be removed 

and access to the deck be sealed. The tenant has refused to allow the access doors to 

be sealed, and has no right to be using the doors as there is no deck access allowed 

per the city’s building department. The tenant has been receiving a monthly rent credit 

for the loss of the use of the deck.  

 Regarding the leak, this claim is not supported by evidence. A licensed roofer 

and HVAC contractor have examined the vent and found no leak. The city building 

inspector noted the tenant’s complaints but did not see any leak. Tenant claims to have 

a video of the leak but has not shown it to anyone.  

 Finally, the owner argues that the tenant is not eligible to file a petition because 

the tenant has been behind on rent since September 2017.  

ISSUES 

1. Are the decreased housing service awards for the door handle and the leak 

supported by substantial evidence?  

 

 



1 
 

 

                                                        CITY OF OAKLAND   
                                 Rent Adjustment Program 

    

MEMORANDUM 

Date:     May 8, 2023 

To:     Members of the Housing, Rent Residential & Relocation     
                                  Board (HRRRB)     
 
From:    Braz Shabrell, Deputy City Attorney 

Re:  Appeal Summary in T22-0202, Joseph v. Jones 
                          
Appeal Hearing Date:       May 11, 2023 
 

Property Address:   567 Oakland Street, Unit 304, Oakland, CA 

Appellant/Owner:  Robert Duncan Jones (owner) 
    Nicholas Drobocky (manager) 
 
Respondent/Tenant:  Michael Joseph 
     

BACKGROUND 

 Tenant Michael Joseph filed a petition with the Rent Adjustment Program on 

November 10, 2022, contesting a single rent increase from $2,050 to $2,234.50 (an 

increase of $184.50, or 9%). The tenant petition indicated that the unit is a 

condominium, and that the tenant received a RAP notice prior to moving into the unit. 

The owner filed a response on December 7, 2022, alleging that the property is exempt 

from the Rent Adjustment Program under Costa-Hawkins because it is a condominium. 

The owner submitted the following documentation: a copy of the rent increase notice 

and proof of service; tax records, a deed, and other documentation indicating that the 

unit is a condominium; and evidence of a current business license and proof of service 

of the response. Both the petition and response indicate that the tenant was provided 

with a RAP notice in April 2021. 

 On January 10, 2023, the owner was sent a “Notice of Incomplete Owner 

Response,” indicating that the owner’s response was missing a proof of service, proof of 

payment of Business License Tax, proof of payment of the RAP fee, and an agreement 

to mediate. The owner re-submitted a copy of the proof of service on January 26, 2023. 



2 
 

RULING ON THE CASE 

 On February 24, 2023, hearing officer Élan Consuella Lambert issued an 

administrative decision, granting the tenant’s petition without a hearing. The hearing 

officer held that the owner’s response was incomplete because the owner was sent a 

“Notice of Incomplete Owner Response” on January 1, 2023, and the owner did not file 

any new documents or proof of service in response to this notice. Therefore, the 

response could not be considered filed and any documentation submitted by the owner 

was therefore inadmissible.  

 The rent increase was found to be invalid because it exceeded CPI and did not 

comply with Oakland’s rent increase moratorium.  

GROUNDS FOR APPEAL 

 The owner filed an appeal of the administrative decision on the grounds that the 

unit is exempt from RAP as a condominium, and therefore RAP has no jurisdiction to 

invalidate the rent increase. It was improper to disregard the owner’s response because 

the “Notice of Incomplete Owner Response” was issued in error, as the owner had in 

fact submitted the required documents. The tenant petition itself indicated that the unit is 

a condominium, and the owner submitted documentation to that effect. It was an error to 

disregard the owner’s response and issue an administrative decision because the 

owner had in fact submitted the required documentation, and the deficiency notice was 

issued in error. The owner was denied due process and the hearing officer is biased.  

ISSUES 

1. Was it proper to disregard the owner’s response as inadmissible? 

2. Was it proper to issue an administrative decision rather than proceed with a 

hearing? 

3. Is there sufficient evidence to support the hearing officer’s findings that the 

rent increase is invalid, where both the tenant petition and the owner 

response indicate that the unit is a condominium?   

 

APPLICABLE LAW AND PAST BOARD DECISIONS 

I.  Administrative Decisions  

 An administrative decision may be issued when petition or response forms have 
not been properly completed, were untimely, or filing prerequisites have not been met; 
where the petition and response forms raise no genuine dispute as to any material facts 
and the petition may be decided as a matter of law; or where the property was 
previously issued a certificate of exemption and is not challenged by the tenant. OMC 
8.22.110F.  



3 
 

II. Owner Filing Requirements   

 In order to file a response to a tenant petition or file a petition seeking a rent 
increase, an owner must submit the following: evidence of possession of a current 
business license, evidence of payment of the RAP fee, evidence of service of the RAP 
notice on covered units, a completed response form, documentation supporting the 
owner’s claim of exemption or justification for the rent increase, and proof of service of 
the response on the tenant. OMC 8.22.090B.  

III. RAP Jurisdiction Over Condominiums  

 Units covered by Costa-Hawkins (California Civil Code § 1954.52) are exempt 
from the Rent Adjustment Program, and hearing officers do not have jurisdiction over 
such units. Costa-Hawkins exempts condominiums that are sold separately to a bona 
fide purchaser. OMC 8.22.030A7; Civil Code 1954.52. Numerous Board decisions have 
held that RAP does not have jurisdiction over condos that meet the criteria under Civil 
Code 1954.52.  

IV. Rent Increase Moratorium 

 Oakland’s rent increase moratorium only applies to units covered by the Rent 
Adjustment Program. It does not apply to units that are exempt from RAP. 

 
 

 
  


	HRRRB Agenda & Packet-Full Board Regular Meeting 5.11.2023.pdf
	Board Agenda 5.11.2023.pdf
	HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
	FULL BOARD MEETING
	May 11, 2023
	7:00 P.M.
	CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1
	ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA
	OAKLAND, CA 94612
	AGENDA

	Board Minutes Full Board Meeting 4.13.2023.pdf
	HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD FULL BOARD MEETING

	Board Minutes Panel Special Meeting 4.20.2023.pdf
	HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD PANEL SPECIAL MEETING

	Chron. Case Report & Case Docs T19-0186 & T19-0235_Didrickson v. Dang-Commonwealth Inc..pdf
	Chron. Case Report- T19-0186 and T19-0235.pdf
	Tenant Petition 2019.2.5.pdf
	Tenant Petition 2019.03.26_T19-0235.pdf
	Property Owner Response 2019.7.11.pdf
	T19-0186 et al Didrickson v. Dang_Hearing Decision 2019.12.23-2.pdf
	Appeal Tenant 2020.1.13.pdf
	Appeal Response Owner 2020.1.15.pdf
	Appeal from Tenant 2020.01.27_T19-0235_T19-0186.pdf
	Appeal Decision_T19-0186_T19-0235 2021.05.07.pdf
	Appeal decision-Didrickson.pdf
	Didrickson Appeal.pdf
	1 Proof Of Service_RAP1 - 2021-05-04T141721.201.pdf

	Remand Hearing Decision_T19-0235_2022.01.25.pdf
	Owner Appeal_T19-0186 & T19-0235_2022.02.02.pdf

	Chron. Case Report & Case Docs_T22-0202 Joseph v. Jones.pdf
	Chron. Case Report- T22-0202.pdf
	Tenant Petition T22-0202 2022.12.10.pdf
	Owner Response T22-0202 2022.12.07.pdf
	Exhibits T22-0202 2022.12.10.pdf
	Notice of Incomplete Tenant Petition T22-0202  2022.12.13.pdf
	T22-0202.pdf
	Notice to Property Owner of Tenant Petition Proof of Service Directions 2022.10.04.pdf
	Tenant-Petition-Form-1.22.21-FINAL_2021-06-22-222103_ddjh (1).pdf
	FILING YOUR PETITION
	Although RAP normally does not accept filings by email or fax, RAP is temporarily accepting Petitions via email during the COVID-19 local state of emergency. You may also fill out and submit your Petition online through the RAP website or deliver the ...
	Rent Adjustment Program
	City of Oakland
	Use Rent Adjustment date-stamp to stamp your documents to verify timely delivery and place them in RAP self-service drop box.

	AFTER PETITION IS FILED
	FILE/DOCUMENT REVIEW


	1 Proof of Service_RAP1 (23.pdf

	Proof of Service T22-0202 2022.12.29.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2

	Notice of Incomplete Owner Response T22-0202 2023.01.10.pdf
	Notice of Incomplete Owner Response.pdf
	1 Proof of Service_RAP1 (38).pdf

	Administrative Decision T22-0202 2023.02.28.pdf
	T22-0202 AD (5).pdf
	Notice of Incomplete Tenant Petition T22-0202  2022.12.13.pdf
	1 Proof of Service_RAP1 (23.pdf


	Owner Appeal_T22-0202_2023.03.20.pdf
	Owner docs 12.7.22.pdf
	2022 BT Certificate_T22-0202 2022.12.07.PDF
	Owner_30 day Notice- Rent Increase T22-0202 2022.12.07.PDF
	Owner_CRS Property Report T22-0202 2022.12.07.PDF
	Owner_DEED T22-0202 2022.12.07.PDF
	Owner_SECURED PROEPRTY TAX BILL 2021-2022 T22-0202 2022.12.07.PDF



	Appeal Memo- T19-0186 and T19-0235, Didrickson v. Commonwealth.pdf
	Appeal Memo- T22-0202, Joseph v. Jones.pdf



